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Cilpaag pali calalyyl
Glylac Jasii Gilagypan

palbill Alaly] péla

4 ayyloiiLul Giljlacl alalell anyal I ha il

ngiilly 330 dylln Cilagagn G Gian jaé (@sbud) ay
iLwsall gl aly il J1la o dlalell

g0 dlalell anydlly aajan dpllo Ailagagn g oo (Gdan ay

J.flun".ll gl alydll Jua

aly cileyjgi cilalyy)

_jl.njj.u.l.“l&ll:llj..l_!g\.ﬁl.ﬂ

Jeciill &ilalyg] pllnal

dylal Glagynao

acaginll Gloiidl lui ganio

Jecanill dilaly] paln

il claly

23 ayigila asllho o)

clac alalsng ayilagll allncll pea Gy dna Jué disal a1y
ajladl yulan

I IIP "‘-II‘:j_.!giII . &p&n;

) alsjll

dxibgll dllncll pea days

17 &ladll gulao clici slalso

aisudl 2y
3 daainllg dpmbudll pavsll d3ay

acnanll alnll cilildl asm oo Leja Juini 24 Gl 1 oo daagnll ailalagll o) ¢
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2021 (sgisall ypasll

(40i1) 2021 pouauga 31 denanll allall cilibyll

2020
Juiagh jliaa

1,375,919

38,526
38,526

1,414,445

33

2021
Jiagd jliga

4,167,300

(58,987)
(58,987)

4,108,313

aisudl a1y

ol Lvaini dalel piy 24 spal aloLis Cilalyl (j5Lasa)
£ .:P'u .:‘F

j.fl.nui.llglel.ujll

:adn il (alyia na

dibasl] (sl aloLis Calalyg] (jibusd)

diaad] oLl alaly il pllna]

acnanll alnll cililydl adm oo leja Jbuini 24 Gl 1 5o ddaynll calalagll o]



aelillLniding g.cl.p.ois dyangayill aylacll Jual adyis

(40i1) 2021 pouauga 31 denanll allall cilibyll

2020 2021 Cilalay) 2021 y1naaga 31 na Ind goanll pllell j4)nll Gy
Juiagh jliga Juiigh jliza
dilagagall
alglaio ji€ Gilagago
336,658 276,712 ailaeng aldlinn
72,244,626 83,175,515 4 dyloiil cilylic
71,910,996 74,309,550 5 dlynj caldyi nd jlodiul
255,715 - Shaldl o pali adc oo digao dan)l
144,747,995 157,761,777
alglaio cilagagn
744,561 179,842 Sl oo paliadc oo digan danyi
1,280,729 582,914 Ibaio cilcgaang (giyao
1,510,721 1,841,961 7 Lol gl alydll Jua oo dlalell dnyélly d3)an dglls cilagagn
580,000 560,000 8 dllag calylniiml gilag
1,901,396 1,880,407 6 aig cginll (sal gl
6,017,407 5,045,124
150,765,402 162,806,901 cilagagnll ggnan
dbglhallg a8lall Ggan
ai8lall Ggdn
19,448,100 19,448,100 9 Jloll Gl
5,199,430 5,199,430 adnl jlan] dglle
1,437,410 1,872,577 10 bl pbbial
1,253,779 1,688,946 11 @bl pahbial
(319,250) (319,250) 13 digja pdul
46,118,487 46,118,487 dylniiutll calylacl) dypombnll dulooll ra paeill i
(26,379) (85,366) dpial citlac Jigai pahbial
52,805,332 56,102,298 dlayo alyl
125,916,909 130,025,222 axaloll Ggan nllnal
alglain yué Ciliglhn
292,258 342,979 Seahgall anaall ajlai alalso
740,060 599,433 14 ddnioun cilagpang ogidla
20,400,000 27,800,000 15 dulyo gifla
21,432,318 28,742,412
alglain Ciliglhn
3,217,749 3,523,027 14 ddnioun cilagpang ogidla
198,426 516,240 6 il sa) Caguisin cabwa
3,416,175 4,039,267
24,848,493 32,781,679 Sliglhnll (pllnal
150,765,402 162,806,901 Ciliglhanllg dpdlnll Ggin ggnan
abiall 323l yla o 303 [ agsiall aluall aaglall alllasell ple | apdill
&)l gulao guydy i dlagl gulan gy

acnanllallall cilildl ada oo leja J4uii 24 1 1 go daagnll ablagll 51 34



2021 (sgisull pypaill

(80i7) 2021 jynuuga 31 deaanll dllall cilibyll

2021 pnsuga 31 ummﬂun]lamﬂ{.m]|mﬁ]n]|gg.naumu|p&dlulu

hlyial haliial Jlhnldgllc
silsial il atuul Jlnll gui)
Jriagh jliaa Jiagh jlisa Jiagh jliaa Jriagh jliaa
1,253,779 1,437,410 5,199,430 19,448,100 2021 piliy 1 na Lok
- - - - disull 2y
- - - - diall syal dloLia calalp]
- - - - dlall aloLindl calalyygll allna)
435,167 435,167 - - cilhliadl pl) lhial
1,688,946 1,872,577 5,199,430 19,448,100 2021 poaa 31 na o
1,110,338 1,293,969 5,199,430 18,522,000 2020 pliy 1 na Lok
- - - - disull 2y
- - - - dionll (syal dloLis calaly)
- - - - dioull aloLindl calalyggll allna)
143,441 143,441 - - abhbliadl pll clhisl
- - - 926,100 d@nin puul jlan)
1,253,779 1,437,410 5,199,430 19,448,100 2020 1013331 (na Ind
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acylill LniAyusg g.¢l.p. i dayayill ﬂJJl.l].C”JlJJl dlyi

(40i7) 2021 pouauga 31 denaall allall cilibyll

€gnan
dyilnll Ggda
Jriagh jliga

125,916,909
4,167,300
(58,987)

4,108,313

130,025,222

124,502,464
1,375,919
38,526

1,414,445

125,916,909

alajo ehJi
Jigh jlipa

52,805,332
4,167,300

4,167,300
(870,334)

56,102,298

51,883,161
1,375,919

1,375,919
(286,882)
(166,866)

52,805,332

Jagai phlial Jaeill paili digjd pul Jloll Guly JAlla
dpial Crtlac anlpall (pa iagd lisa Qigs L3
Juagdjlina Aljlacl dysulanll
?‘u.JI Soee ul
Jriagh jliga
(26,379) 46,118,487 (319,250) .
(58,987) - ) )
(58,987) - - .
(85,366) 46,118,487 (319,250) .
(64,905) 46,118,487 (319,250) 759,234
38,526 - - -
38,526 - - -
) ) . (759,234)
(26,379) 46,118,487 (319,250) .

acnanllallall cilildl ada oo leja J4uii 24 1 1 Go daagall calalagll o) *
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2021 (sgisull pypaill

(80i7) 2021 januya 31 deaanll ddlall cilibyll

2021 pnasya 31 (pa dpaiinll disull gnanlldapaill Glaaaill Gl

2020 2021 ilalagl

Jagh jliga Juiigh jlixa
Juesiill dhduil
1,375,919 4,167,300 dill ayy
sagaaill calaasill nalag disnll g aaglhel cilyaci
1,089,400 (325,820) 4 aylniinl cilylacl alalell nyall na paeill
(3,051,473) (3,340,472) 5 dlynj cald i aflii na dno
76,307 (331,240) JiLusall gl alydll J1la o alalell dnyally 3o dglls Cilagagn (b Gaan jé (6)hud) ay
- (1,702) J_fLijIgigh)ﬂld_lljgn&hLdlﬁ.n*ﬁ]h&gj)n&;]lndl:ggg.n&gdn@.&gng_”
(62,500) (74,348) alyl culejgi calaly)
(67,833) (33,854) 28lga calalyl
89,696 94,628 il
65,760 53,578 Ssahgall anaall alai alalss janan
39,506 101,765 dcdginll oloiful jilua janan
466,642 430,460 Jugni cayllsi
- (822,191) dyigild dadlhn 3

21,424 (81,896)
:Jolell Jlall uly (nle crlyacill
487,621 596,050 Loadio cilcgaang (gisdn
(84,994) 1,037,851 ddniun cilagpang (gifla
424,051 1,552,005 Juesinill ahuil o dailill annaill cilaaaill
- (2,857) dcgan uakgall doaall dilai alalso
424,051 1,549,148 Juéshill dhisil o axilill dpaill Ailéasill grala
il dhnuisil
(1,070) (17,061) cilaeng calslinn pl) cilala)
(6,760,385) (9,755,495) 4 aylniioul caljlac (pl) calalal
228,033 172,248 5 dlynj il i (na gl ol Jladl Guly 2y
- 1,702 JiLusall gf alydll J1a oo dlalell dnylly dayan dglls cilagagn gu o Citknain
1,776,707 710,683 5 dlynj caldpuis oo dnlioun alyl cileyjgi
62,500 74,348 alyl cileyjgi calalyyl
(250,000) 20,000 allsg ciljlniiul ¢flag (na @4l pala
67,833 33,854 dnliun 2ilga cilaly)
711,859 - aliun yali Jpani
(4,164,523) (8,759,721) soiianll dhuisil (né dnaaianll dpaill Giliaaill ala
Jugoill ahuil
(914) (7,577) dcgaan alyl cilyjgi
(466,642) (430,460) dcgann Jugni cayllsi
(669,299) (90,193) Jalill cilegaan
6,200,000 7,400,000 @alio dulyo Jugni crllydini
5,063,145 6,871,770 Jagnill ahuisil o dailill &paill Gilaasill réla
1,322,673 (338,803) Jalenll aaillg 2&ill na dalajll (Gaaill) raln
380,297 1,702,970 disull dyl2y na Jalenll 2aillg 2aill

6

1,702,970 1,364,167 Mo 31 (ra Jaleall 24illg 24ill
518,088 849,574 dgndi e Giilolen
(518,088) (849,574) Jglin pll loadn dcan Jueiml
dnloiiul cilylic nll calala)
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aipill Jga dilnglen 1
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jaLaall &)1l Gudan jly &l Laag 2021y 31 gré & ymiinll il (“Gegnanll” anl Lin Laayl] L) & cylil
s.cyéennnllayllall libyll ads Jyaci pill d4yiall nmbnl dylell dyngncll dyenall §2y.2022 ljpé 7 ayliy
Laylaul

1996 13giAi 26 Ayliy gl né Lavuoulig vl ai drigh dole dnmbun a4y (ua pdll a4 inll )

:pdll a4 il ahudil oy Lnga

ﬁJgJajLﬁgd_thmﬂ.;jLMgmeL"chlULﬁL”gg\_dUﬂhU_dhgg__gCUjgxdLn464JlﬁL||ﬁh_thjJ|ﬁ_d|_‘lj__|,de o
Caagill

yidundl cilenanll dolél 3 na by cilylacllg nibinll gyl dald diling 3paii

.anlall dolall jlang dyalull ciliinllg dxmyayill jAlinllg dgylaill Glgw il aolal e

el ra jlofiullg dylacll gylsanll dglhnll cLigll alg o na djalinllg cillglénll Jlacl & al4 3paii e
odll @8 ill galyel puoai Lal pill gyluisnllg caldyill

dllagll Guph oc gl dpitlio djgny Lnayaiig g 32 nle dnlall gl dnlell dyjlacll gyLisnll cibulyall alac] o

Lavalyel Grini le Lnacbud il Jlnc Tl paiig cugdll gjla of Jala caljlacligla] o

oshu iz ol gl dakao Lal §g-85 ol pdll @8)sll jou Lod el alwal of laulwal & ylacll b alaall &la] - o
il gl dlilan galyel cala Jlacls pgdi gl a)lal _ndgis nill calipallg cibuswdallg caldyillg palaill go ang
Ly GLailall gl Lty i g Lren aloaidll gl Lavalyel §aani e Laniglei

<ghllanygs na dajan pﬂ|6ﬁ}.¢d|p_m_mioll

odll a4y ill Jdbluin Jud 0 2020 oo 31 pa dadviiell diowll degnanlld eoanll d yllall calibdl alnicl o
.gLJ_Jianjg_TQ_cijI&_‘npideJﬂpJg .20271 guylo 16 3 yliy sdcinll digismll dyngncll dycnnll clnial na

.0a g sl Lavilgieg (2 pdy 350 .26 pdy Galhll .;ljﬂﬂl&\u@.ﬂd;;unﬂg@ﬂlpﬂl&ﬁ).&]lqﬁnm
ugbl1 13085 dlanll 22448
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2021 (sgisull pypaill

dcnanll alloll calibadl Jga calalay]
2021 pna 31 ha deaviinll disudlg na Lo

dolal dyoulandl Glulusdl 2
albacdll gubal 2.1

, eliilul ol
glgall aulanll jlen Gulan Ge dyalall dllall yylasil dygall jlenll laag denanll ayllall calilyll alac) pi

el Gubid
cilagagallg dylniil calyLicll Gulyé Josingd Jacnlldyaylill aaldill anl Lasg dcnanll aylnll caliludl alacl pi
alalclldnyall Liag pilaall gf alydll Jula oo dlalell dngélly dayanll dylall

odlladpill gajell dlacg dpuyfill dlacll Ladl Jin sall guiagsIljluall denaall dyllall cilibull Aje i

gnaill gubal 2.2

2021 pinunga 31 (na Ind deglill Laniding o 81l a4 i) dllall calibll denanll dyllall cilibull GnAi

&4yl rd Lni) Lo oo é o calale na Gg-an Lanl g5 ol palanl d cgnanll Ay cii Loaic dpny sl Liii
Lana yoiioendl @4l e lavipayos JUA G caladledl @i e juilill e dyaall Lawal g8ag Lava paiiowunll
:icgnanll (s3] g8y Loaic hhda Lavia yofisnall d4jill ale degnanll phy i é33a0 djgnig

cila dhsinidll agagi e dllalldpall Lnind guill alall Gganll i) Loy yniibunll 8 pill orle dyhynll o
Ly yoiiLunll @il dnlall dlall

g tlvya yoiimnll il na LaidyLine (o dacin calbile na Ggiin gl phalanl gaycill o

ailadle (ple pilill ra Ly yndiunll G885l (ke Iy plhaiul (e dpall o

dcgnanll K aiailnaicg palpialll lam pealg .Cugnill Ggan aulel e Liiaghnll ol palyial Elim dnle dany
ciloglenlldals Laybicl radcgnanll 3ali Lo pniiunll a4l dlilan §g.dn g cragnill Ggdn dnlel yo Jals
CUJULCILDJL&JQ}DJMJDJ'GﬁMﬂluﬂLL&J}JﬂJMdMMMJJ&QLD“u'JJthJIg

Lva yniianll d4pill ra Gyadll cilgadll alol eo pflall (sagleill cuyigill o
g ‘s il analeill abyiyill o aailill ggaall e
alnianll cugnill gdng dcgnanll sal Cugnill Ggan o
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ae lillLniding g.l.p.oi dyamgayill aylacll Juol adyis

dcnanll alloll cilibadl Jga calalag]
2021 o 31 pa daviinll disudlg na Lo

ol puini cagyplallg calngleall cuild I3l a1 é Ly poiiounll @4puidl nde Lavighy o (530 ppdidcgnaall 3yci
dcgnanll Jonni Losic dailill d4pill ganaibaay dphyowll a50501 Jolgell oo 3341 gl 22lg Joole a cilyaci agag
calill &4 il e Lviphy s dcgoanll 3 dai Loaic dpayll a3 ca dgiig dcilill a4 il e dpag ol e
JUA Laveyy gl Lavijln pi il dcylidl a4 il & dleinll calagpanllg cilaljudllg cilighhallg cilagagall alya] aisg
dcgnanll dpnyw cadgi A yli rin dphuswll (nle d cgaanll Jgnn dli oo dcnanll d il cibibyll nd diowll

dclill @il e

j¢ panallg dcgnanll pill @4yl (raaLusny (spa 1l loLisll calalya il agis oo 30y J4g jiLausall gl aly il glei
clibull onle dygpall e i yal atig dphysmall e annll rd jac sany gl s sal ol i djlasuall
dcgaanll dy bl bl eo deilill caldy il apombnll cblsdl guilnii s) dclill cald il ayllall
cilagpanllg cilalyylllg ddlall Gg-dng dcgnanll caldyin G Loga ciliglhnllg cilag agall &al4 alegioml pisg

.0l 1ic Joldll degnanll clacl o Loy crtlolenlly d alcinll  yaaill ciliaaaillg

.35l ggdn dlolend gl ada Hga dali dhpuid apslall dGnn ra il (e doulhall iy

ciliglhallg (ayaindl A3 (ra Lo) calagagall acyioi Laila dicili a4 onde dphayull & cgnanll cin_da 1]
alydll Ly gra dili il of alyl by calpictll 5 Lnig agSlall Gganl spaill agisllg dyhynll ¢ anallg
dnyill coanll pllall j4pall Gl grd ay b aian jladioul (slg aliswall Jldnll Jun i alug .coanll Slaall gi
Ll gf aly i Gl Gl csya il dloLisdl calaliatll nd Ll dlan 3giy gré dan sl casing aaciLad alalell
clagagall ca djiibio dcgnanll cinlé 13] d)gjall rAidi lnywag pilo ga oy Lay K aianll alydll gf coaall

alall aila ailighanll gi

:acnanll agllall Gililull hé dindinll doylill a8 il Junlai by oga
iyl dbasi dyleall &ySlall dna ougnlill aly a8 pudull gl
2020 2021

dgmyayicaloaa %98 %98 Caaghll (dladn) .cl.p.yit lnjgould clynall a4 pui
e dcnanllayllall bl alac) pi nlillig .atlel a8y 5l na %100 dpis dsdlo dnn Llea p il a4yl Uini

a4yl ola cUa gog .elinld datle cala calphal poaly (%2 :2020) %2 dsouis dydlnll dsui Jyaui pi .l 3
%100 dsniy d38)nll dna G agaiunll Sl pdll
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dcnanll alloll calibadl Jga calalay]
2021 pna 31 ha deaviinll disudlg na Lo

(ani7) dolal dyoubanll cilbuloudl 2
Allaalg dpsabanl Alalpall pa Glpgill 2.3
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)34 30 JLa Gnaii cailyia sl by ] jabill sl clel gl @luls e d30 Lvangs jualill e da0 degaanll 33ai
pacally na pabill sdc clail b Lo calyia sl gl «Jg-den J50in aisulan goo 34kl &l ra jalill séc
Jodico J5oin aisulon (o 3411

d plsadll degnanll Guni Ll alill agac (A cr agos dpaln] cilyial cilagagall pali jLa degnanll ini
il dlnll cila Jolgell als rclyi Lanil sf .4l o 303201 LA & ajlon & lgden djg-r 3 48all oo G4 13] Lo pyydi
b4 13l yualill a_iic 3o p i a cgnanll aci gualill dlay Ayl cig .23l LA dlonl Lyalaial fjaly Gani
pa-< gf) dylnn (ple Lvija ule yidyg dcgnanll djboyn Glhai (o cay cagrall pé (spnga yici gl na i

(Jlacill apayilyiml (rd jaeill Jn) 24320l jLa (Gsuyloo

}804 dcgnanll - il palill agic Ciloljill

Ingyir p i gl 1ALl dcgnanll ingig .dylaiismll Lavillacl d ylai caljLac jyali ag_éic d cgnanll cinp
Lanil sl o sylaill jLacl] salnial pacll oo bowyd) leja Joing 1 pabill séc dao Jlinll Juow e wabiyiyill plialg
ol ind ali agdics agacll alwiak ciolag ciljLacll ad_a & 150nl d olal Liljnllg pbalanll & al4) b aini

&_.lJI Sooe _IJIC'IJI" II c”. o

gl axllosulpll dnyill cLaiytl gi juali calalil aliid asijla poi 13l dyloiiowl cilylach jLacll cayiniy d cgnanll pg ai
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(anii) anlal aysuledl ciboalswdl 2
anlall apusslanll Glalyiadllg Glpaaaillg plﬁajll 2.6

ailalyialllg Cilpaasll
Al cilpaaaill oo 346 pael (A ill dnundllg dudiwnll jalaall Gleid guill domdill ailaliadl s Loga
cilagagalldypiasllanall e spnga Juaci dyal ol 538 danga phlang bhyiyi il dcnnll dlnll cibilyll
ala_cl aic aalinll calyisgall plldcgnanll cilalyialg cilyyadi aiind .ada l dgllall dioudl JUA ciliglhnllg
Gy i aa aduaismnll ailyghill Jga adiall ailalyiallg cagydall gLa «4Ia ¢ ng .dcnanll d yllnll caLilyl
adc calaliadl gra ciljaeill ada guie aly dcgaanlldphym Glhi gl dailill cagyall gi Gguull ra calpucill

.Laigaa

&,lJl.n.i'.'i..u.l]lClljlii.r_llp.;,g.ﬁ.'i
oudi cyal ondl iaLtquanJanJIangan_JuJJIaIJLa:_llgthﬂl a4 dyyloiiwdl ailjlacll dlalell dnyall 3 gaai p iy
Goglgillladm ppaipadiglhollapallg ailagall p sl Gapian Guldiwe ljlac pudielpa id oo sgiom
OAnill piy p 13] clidiowb .@gﬂly@lmmmqmgj;g_ﬁ@_d dagyen pdi albul plaaisul ailylécll

.Hgbﬂlj_.l..ﬁénglan_qu“CthMMJbngLmin@gjg.néijg_ﬂ_!ﬁ_n.}_ﬁﬂaj_mn.;_lajd_n

AU dgoidly calepnll diglin ddgyb oo eoall dnulgs jaghill 3 dylaiioll calylicll dlalell dnyall 33200 piy
G-ai Juill &gl dylatiull ciljlacll & lalell & nyéll 1047 o5 «alebiigll Jlncdl diwilly & al33ll & dyhg
il dyghanll dylaiisul ciljlacll dlalell dayll 3aai piy G calalagll dln oy d g plbaiul palill il
dlilnn calgng calnu Ll caljLael a5y crtlnlen Gubal (e cileysnll dijlan ddgph plaaisal pali calall jai il

.dcgoanll ciljLacy anlall ELi

dlgnj Caldpsis na lnfiatll dngd palasil
Ltylostil 8 03 ALAAI L Jarani (5)g)-8l oo G813 Lo & cgnanll 2221 @ ySlall Go i ddnyh G i >
ol e negagn Jula sl éllin 14 13] Lo dcnan d yllo caliby J4 dyli i degnanll 337 .alunjll Laildy i pa
dnyall gALasil ¢ 1o d cgnanll oowiai (Jula 3gag dll rag Lavingd codasil a Lojll caldjoill grd jladisall
eoanll Ll gl Al il Ly grd jlwall Jawi pd dgyiand ainyig)lniiomll aalapioml gAnall ¢yl o Gprally
daainllg duubudl paunlldnyy 3
Jul doflall apalell pan il 23.cl aynll briginll gle il gy nndy dpnbadll as sl dgay clwisl ey
p}n]lhngn“uﬂLaLuﬂngjﬂanﬂﬂJﬂ“pﬂmﬂlM]uLumlpﬂan (a_u_p“pm_uﬂ clidizualy) disudl
uu]|a_|3|_d|p.m_mJJ|J:)_dgg}.n]|h_mg_l_n_]||1_||](a_up]|p.m_m| eligiouly) dioudl JUA dnflall dyaledl pa il el
a.;,Jl.nJluLlLl,_g_"e__ULlL"n_aLnj.a,q:chLulud!a.an;nJlaJnanla,qJLd|pm_mJJ|a_a|jd_ggmJ_l_chhjlmlp_l,!
pnllagng ola dnfld daain cilgal agag pacl 17Ai daasn dlnian dnfls pauldcgnanll 530 54 pl denanll
ddilhin daainllg dubadll

2020 2021

1,375,919 4,167,300 (iagh L) dissadl 2y
193,423,511 193,423,511 (auﬂlpmi;mu)&juuldm anilall ayalell paunill 33l 3350l huuginll
ola7.11 onla 21.54 daainllg duubaill paunll day)
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2020 2021 .
Jriagh jlig Jiagh sliga aylosioul Gljlac 4

66,055,553 72,244,626 pliz1 a
7,278,473 10,605,069 alalal
(1,089,400) 325,820 dyloiiul caljlacl alalell angall na jacill

72,244,626 83,175,515 Moo 31 a

2020 2021 ot o4 dyyloiiLudll &ilylacll cagini piy
Juigh jliga Jiigh jliga

46,224,626 57,675,515 Hghill 244 jlac
26,020,000 25,500,000 djgho ciljlac

72,244,626 83,175,515

67,924,626 :2020)9'\_'1'__!9_‘”'_'1_.!3 79,375,515 jad dlale dnydy gﬂnﬁm“Lﬁ.c Oy pi.2021 pnwya 31 pa Ln4
Jldo Hlons pi.dn 12020 pouga 31) Jriagh jLiaa 27,800,000¢ 40y dylyo ridla Jaldo Glond (risgh jLiga
Jagh jLiga 516,240 (any Elisdl (s3] caguindo cabuag (15 alay]) (iagh jLiga 20,400,000 any délyo nidla

(6 alag]) (rings jLiaa 198,426 :2020 jan s 31)

ol oluin Lyl Slogin Lanilal pls cil u\J!TJl | aylodiLutll calyLacll & lalell dnyall 3yaai
P.Lﬂ.DJJj]lgu‘\JA.DCLug_ﬂ)u_LD_La.DJlu_IJ.ﬂ)JJiaJJLDJJ.uJJJlulJLﬂI_”u_Dgg_IJHJ_ﬂ)p_LLOJJbDw_auLD.DJJD
il Gl pl:3T s o sadinll 118 pLE 8543 oy 3y >-nico

Jlecilaaldilladyhg ooyl apmill aleyalldijlin ddyh G goalldh il jughill o yé ciljlacll g pdipd
leLisill

lalpll alnwy dégyh dhulg pali cilaly) Gaai pill ajghall allicl apaipi o

(Oppdill G Ooo J-1ll ppdill :2020) Gangppdill Gada G oo J-6ill ppdill dcgnanll cylial paill galy¢ I

afyn illhinl Laag dcnanll ayllall calildl Ayl 3.cy gf Jud 3alg it aisn (rinj Glhi (s Laselja] pi sl

325,820¢ lyny dlalell dnyall a jacill oo Laili Ly degnanll cila s wilogaill asan ool bl . JLoll Glgowl

cnanll filuall gf alydll ol ora (risgs jLisa 1,089,400 Eluny il :2020) g8 jLisa

.dlalellanyall aopandl Jgaall na 3g 2 (sgibunll joa dyloiiudl ailjlacll aald cayini piy
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:alalpdll dlosy ddgpla pladioul anydi pi (5311 jgholl jlacll ppadih daleinll dolall Slaliadl ply Inya

2020 2021
9.8 9.5 (iagh jli) (@po yinll) jludll hungin
%6.7 %6.3 ailell Jocn
%0.5 %4.6 jg<aidl Jacen
dplositll cihlicl gy ddlciall dyynga 155 1 LA 16 Cilpeill paadill Gyl QU Jgaall ey
aisall ayy nle il a Alpéill
2020 2021 assdill Galalyial
Jiagh jliga Jiagh jliga
217,175 218,820 %1+ Jlaudll huugin
161,264 171,105  dpubnidhai 50+ 2ilell Jaco
32,570 39,264 %1+ Jgésinll Jaco
248,230 244,386 %1+ dagioll pabill calalygl gl Jaesinill cilagpan i
:aun jll Glhpisdl g bl jlodisu Ul acgnanldl (sal
iyleall ayslnll ana
aipll ahdaiill aiull dglani 2020 2021 ousnlill aly syl paal
dyliic dh il JgiAi 31 %35.53 %35.53 igsll clypallad i
.y dyylacll
(aladn)
dnliic dh il Jnsuia 31 %24 %24 duycll@slonll  duaalljlanll a4 i
dyagcull (“Jlanll”) .p.p.3

uﬂ.ll.n.‘lm.d)a.l.ud |J.I.ba.l.l.nj.||u|_‘lj.u.l.||u\.a1|.n.l.1.m Ul agpiasrdl anydl |uma.‘|p]|u!

2020 2021
Jiygh liga Jriagh jliaa
70,825,737 71,910,996 jliy T na ok
3,051,473 3,340,472 fliill rd dnn
(228,033) (172,248) Jall Gul) 3
(1,776,707) (710,683) anlisun alyl cileyjgi
38,526 (58,987) dupinl cilne Jugai citlyaci
71,910,996 74,309,550 josuna 31 na lnd
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2020 2021 (alaan) 6p.p.2aumill
Jiagh jliga Jigh jliga Jagh jliga Jiagh jliza salunjll Al pisdd (allall jApall Gl
301,722,138 304,674,608 270,374,568 34,300,040 dlglaib yué Cilagagn
11,773,095 8,899,432 8,137,325 762,107 dlglain Cilagagn
(89,214,738) (86,202,563) (86,136,106) (66,457) dlglaib ¢ Cihglhn
(10,821,770) (7,259,152) (6,056,684) (1,202,468) dlglain Ciliglhn
213,458,725 220,112,325 186,319,103 33,793,222 adlnll Ggan
%35.53 %24 acgnanll aybdlo dysui
71,910,996 74,309,550 66,199,177 8,110,373 Jlniiatl dypiasdl dngall

alyojll Aildpisll na degnanll jlniiudl dgllall Ciloglenll gailn (Ll Jgaall adgs

2020 2021 clyoall a4y Jlandl a4y.5 saionld alyo i Gild il ailiig dlalpl
gl jlga Jigh liga -Elp.gir aylacll 6p.p.3dauamill
(dladn) gl jliza
Jagh jliga
18,762,175 19,982,828 17,824,833 2,157,995 Cl':l'H.!"
8,694,372 9,617,312 8,953,313 663,999 e.ﬂ.u."
160,525 (245,779) - (245,779) Sl aloL calalygl (L)
8,854,897 9,371,533 8,953,313 418,220 n].n'.u.l."uhl}.l.!“m]lnn!

it o yniiy Jalenll 24illg 34l Gla gnanll dgnaill Silaadill lu A<l

2020 2021

Juigh jlisa il jliga
1,901,396 1,880,407 2ig Clgisll (sal dan)l
(198,426) (516,240) cligdl 53l Caguindn cibwa
1,702,970 1,364,167 0331 (na I Jalenll 2gillg 2dill nllna)
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(4 3L dpladiuntll el oy Jyléo GLads

fiLouall gl aly Il WA o dlalell ngally dayan gl Cilagagn 7

2020 2021
Jigh jliya Jiagh jliza

1,458,552 1,786,513 dycaun ju€ dylan pul

52,169 55,448 djlan Gnlin
1,510,721 1,841,961

dll4g jlniisul cilag 8
971.35 dywiy aali 3y Jaeo Jopaig dan oy (531 dcago riaghll JLuJJlJ d2jap dllig jlniiuml cilag ol
.dcgnanll plgldo niedl.o.lp[n oloiil ailha Jaldo lons Lvnyadi piag th_u.l (%1.319:2020 junsga31)

£
dlnllguly 9
Jolsll cgasnllg jannllg as apanll Jlall Gl :o0 pdll alpssdl Jlnsuly b3
2020 2021 2020 2021
et ol Jriagh jliaa Jriagh jliaa
oula 100 dnydy lAma 194,481,000 20c
194,481,000 194,481,000 19,448,100 19,448,100 194,481,000 :2020 pnuaya 31) pmowld
€9430g (pauull yula 100 dnydy o
JolsIL 134i

Sibadl phbiadl 10

il 328 %10 {oe Joai 1 dsni Jagni iy il a8yisll b il pLaillg Gupbill s icg il il (g ilal Laag
wudan claci dlaldng al4jlg duilgll dllncll g ca dypig rnlell padill cugdll dmondo dnn Jud dinwll 1y o
a5yial) dygiull dyngnclldyenall jgay il a8yl la] gulan oo dyngi orle 2Ly (bl ualia il ) aylal
2a0ll JLall guly §oo %50 &y rbliial jglais Losic Jagaill I cadg pdll

v ggaanll JLall guly oon %5 iy alyl caleyjgi alaul (g dbnll ¢ Lally 3320 (gLl pubalyiadll ¢ gjgi o)
&lanll I aluyl cilejgi 2o ddagnll alydll Laya an i il Juill calgiull
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vl 3319710 e 3 4 dywi Jagai wiay e ill @8yl gl dll pLaillg gupalill 3dcg il il ogilél Laag
wudan claci dlaldng alsjdlg dailgll dllncll g ca dypig rnlell padill cugdll dmongo dnn Jud dinwll 1y o
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.rbliadll 5. ggjgi ol 3g 48 331 U dlagll Gudan (o dpngi aagay

apdialylclojel 12

(e 11:2020) prsus J3] guda 5 ¢ dlgy d1ndi eLUig__{jgj.; Pﬂlﬁj}_ﬁl“ﬁjh!uﬂ_l.}bd\_ﬂgi 2022 3 4lpa 7 pa
adpild roabiuunl dygisull dungnclldyenall d dalgal 4 yngill ada £ AAT.2021 jonga 31 nd daaviiall diondl
odll

dyladl yudan dingi nle 2021 Guyylo 16 Aylia ﬁ).ﬁ.c.i.nﬂpi”&ﬁphﬂgmmLm.nJ dasgisndl dayngnclldyenall Cidalg
(e 11:2019) 2020 prnwnn 31 rd daaniinll dioudd dinai alyl cajgi pacy

2020 2021 digja p.m.mi 13

1,057,489 1,057,489 ln.m_..u.ljll hhYd

%0.54 %0.54 ajannll g il i

187,176 321,477 (riagh sliga) dpdigaull dnyall

319,250 319,250 (g4 jliza) aalsill

304 ¢ in1 2027 junwga 31 ULaamjlaLuﬂJpﬂlaﬁ}_uﬂlpMLuﬂLA“kgg_m“}Luﬂe_l}nﬂh_.u.IgJ.DJlJJ_Eu
(edund] Lida 177 :2020 poga 31) pall Lila

Q_npm_mﬂld_lu‘ ".hLdJ,J_IJIP_'ig‘aJ_J.Ld"' |J|lD(ni£&IJngJaJ4LaHiaJ4JjJ|pﬂJuia_anJ"' "d:\Ldg\.’iJldL;,thi:.lJthl
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adaisun Cilagyang (giala 14

2020 2021

Jiagh jliaa Jigh jlina
926,090 1,914,692 U43)g0g OHlgldn (nll darun ¢bo
96,721 286,095 Saalizun oo boado plibun jlayl
253,981 420,425 Supalioun oo ciligoli
64,700 427,659 dadniLun cilagpan
128,940 121,363 i alyl cileyjgi
31,139 155,617 (17 alay)) dddle cila calyal ] ddrioun ¢llin
1,251,505 445,829 yabill aibiglho
1,204,733 350,780 09)al Ogidla

3,957,809 4,122,460
s o4 coanll pllell j4ynll Gl na adarisunll Gilagpanllg Gaidladl e alaadl iy

2020 2021

Jiagh jliga Jigh jlipa
740,060 599,433 dlglain ji¢
3,217,749 3,523,027 dlglain

3,957,809 4,122,460

dulyo giala 15

1.5% duuada 2y Jaco b_uJJg_LDJ_D.JJguu_Ig_‘L"JLUJJIJﬂ.JJJ.DULth xU\JA.DLiIJJu.DQ.JJIJ.DULLﬂJU’lJ\.CJg_D;JJIP_I
aljlac Jaldo (lorgdlgado Jrig dj_‘u.nll caglll g < jalnll pnall Jacen Gga (ligizss 1.5% :2020) Ligizsu
(uu_lngLuJ 67,924,626 :2020) 2021 pnssya 31 ra Lnﬁuu_lgﬁJLuJ 79,375,515 Lvyad dypian anydy dgylaiiowl

(4alay)

(n_ug_‘nJLuJ 416,630 ¢ luny 2021 jyn g2 31 ULGCI_LEI)JJ.DJ 1 iinll diwdl JU A dlopell jaldé .l ca 186 d nyd caill
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JHoauaa 31 - asnaill Glaasill Jaba1
2021 (@jalall) [ dajlgll 2021
gl jliza Jigh jlipa g gliza
121,363 (7,577) 128,940 ddnkan alyf cilegjgi
27,800,000 7,400,000 20,400,000 dlyo gidla
445,829 (805,676) 1,251,505 palill bglhn
28,367,192 6,586,747 21,780,445
Moaga 31 - dgadill calaaaill Jalia 1
2020 (é)alall) [ Gaylgll 2020
Jviagh jliga Jiygh liaa Jagh jliga
128,940 (914) 129,854 ddniun alyl cileyjgi
20,400,000 6,200,000 14,200,000 danlyo gidla
1,251,505 (669,299) 1,920,804 palill ibglhn
21,780,445 5,529,787 16,250,658

aalcll ala calphill Ahbnal - 17

Jralagng Oa1aiill Gulgguunllg aJIJ_‘qu.LlJA_.DLLﬂ'_Cig Souaidl GunabLanll 3l d3n)dllg cillolenll aam Jini
ol Gl Gadllnll alp b Il c1lg o Langa g8y il cald inllg Goapdinll @ avilile alyalg d cgnanll Lclld)layll
renhll Jlacdll Gl jod Ladlal dcgaanll pg.ai illg Lavde gugalall ilill gf day sl dlon pavilsol,
oillad il alal Jad oo crilolenll a3 pic i hgyiig cilunlow (e ddalgnll pii

:enanll yiLuwall gl alydll by na dayanll dédle Gla dalphal go Grlolenll aly oga

2020 2021 alynj dd pis
Juigh jlhiga Jigh jliga Qiagh jliga
5,044 4,444 4,444 sl cilagpang jlayl cilagpan
(ayla] cilagpnng culjlac Jucsind calagpnn (o dajan)
:enanll ndloll j45nll Gy na daganll aaile Gala calphl (53l danpdll nly Lnga
2020 2021 alunj d puis
Juiagh jbga gl jliga il jliga
31,139 155,617 155,617 (14 alay)) dédle (53 caph (nl] @énian ¢lln
1,251,505 445,829 445,829 yalill ailiglhn
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.dcnanlld yllnll

tdiodl JUA degnanll Ldell jlatl naligo alalsn b lnga

2020 2021 Llcll Gjladll naligo alalsn
Juigh jbiga Jigh jliza

159,075 223,466 Jadllapni Lljng ciilgy
31,767 25,013 Suahgnll aoaall alai élalso
20,000 75,000 ayladll gulan claci lalsn

210,842 323,479

g jLiaa 75,000 ¢any djlall gudan claci alaldn cajny pdll a8jiull élal Gudan gl 2022 julpa 7 ayliy
g psndbunlld dalgnl dungill a3 d ¢ AN .(ndagh jLiga 20,000 :2020) 2021 junmya 3T ra daaviiell disud]

oill a4l dygizull dungncll dyenall clnial

dyladl yudan dngi nde 2021 Guylo 16§4JU4&3_6LmJ|pﬂlﬁﬁ}JM|gmmLuJ.nJ61gg.LmJ|éi_.l__ng.ndlij_;._cnglld_ﬁ.dlg
.2020 poswa 31 ULOO_LLDJ.LD“CIJ_JJJ.UU\_Ug.f!JLUJ 20,000 Lavyad dylall yudan clacl dlalbo cajgia

alnian Cibiglho 18

:2020) Jiagh jLign 21,399 ¢uny Hlon wilhi Jhnidlaian caliglho d cgnaall (5312021 o wga 31 ra L
osf Lanie Ly of céiginll oo Guolg dyladioml cillacy Glei Laga d llall &)ljg ol ajlan] g (riagh jLiza 21,399
.apmga abiglho

Silelhall Giloglen 19

g Jaesind Gaclha Lavgalg Laviloaag Lavilaiio _nde 2Lia dLn.ciabgg ol dcgnanll p yhaii o dyladl Al ¢l
igla Lo loavil iy jyldialac|

g__l_._dlua'J_('JQleﬁ:Jngbjgi;Li_g.”gQleﬁ:Jlg\.a'&Jg_L'i.n.l|gJ|.nJJ_..u""' ﬂl(';_n.n_l_l""'gm_'iﬂgJLﬁ:JlJl.nu_..u’"' Wakhoiil o
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(4nii) cilclhall ailogles 19

:alelhall pylii Jga Ciloglen (ply nga

ahil Siljlaiia g

Qoo dcjgn i< dylac s
Jiagh jliza Jigh jliga Jagh jliga Jiagh jliza 2021 pnsasya 31
5,608,609 865,655 1,326,432 3,416,522 cilelhall calalyl
325,820 - 325,820 - dyloiiul caljlacl alalell angall na jacill
@330 dyllo calagagn (o @ddno j¢ jibua
331,240 - - 331,240 Ll gl alydll Jua oo dlalell dnyally
(430,460) (127,617) - (302,843) Jagni capllai
(1,667,909) (1,326,776) (341,133) - onalnll (sl alagyan
4,167,300 (588,738) 1,311,119 3,444,919 alelhall pflii
162,806,901 3,479,875 83,175,515 76,151,511 alelhall cilagagn
32,781,679 3,702,035 19,079,644 10,000,000 alelhall ciliglhan

ol Acjgn pic ayglac  (gadll ailylniiulg
Jiagh jliaa Jiagh jliaa Juiagh jliaa Jiagh jliaa 2020 proaaga 31
4,159,053 170,992 874,088 3,113,973 alelhall calaly
(1,089,400) - (1,089,400) - daylaiioul aljlacl dlalell dogall na ppeill
@330 dyllo cilagagn (o dddno ¢ jibua
(76,307) - - (76,307) Ll gl alydll Jua oo dlalell dnyally
(466,642) (126,822) - (339,820) Jagni cali
(1,150,785) (877,982) (272,803) - onalally (spai cilagyan
1,375,919 (833,812) (488,115) 2,697,846 alelhall pflii
150,765,402 5,099,059 72,244,626 73,421,717 alelhall cilagagn
24,848,493 3,703,828 11,144,665 10,000,000 alelhall ciliglhan
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dylloll hlanll Gylal Obulgag calaml .20

«§g—ull ) hlang dlgyoudl jhlang uLDJjJJlJ.hb.DULﬂ)ﬂ_Cg.D_'\.D“ alloll cilgaill §oo aailidl asngipll jalaall G
i_ﬁhg&;.m_um_l" laadlynllg gubidllg agaaill ddypa phlanll adaéylal piy (Alg degnanlldh G ium}bb.n]lu_nil
Ganinadcgnanll il dpns &_g.n.mialjjhli\.nllﬁjlalgmd_ﬁ,ubllam Ol.spalll lhylgnllg phlaell agaal

asbginll llgdmall @ lcis Lo ybolanll oy cill dylgd o degnanlly 3y5 45 Jaxisg alyl

dcgnanll gaycii pm il jle il jhlang diadll crilncll palang Al Ja-eo yalan Gl Ggomdl jhlan powdii
Liaglgisillg afull pné calyseill Jin Jloc il palan dlaibunll phlanll d sl dylac Jooii U Jyesiill palaal Lag
oulan clacl Janiy dcgnanll (s3] pagilpiswtll hyhaillddac JUA oo palanll asa ddlo aiy . Jlacll clhdg

sl dlal £ saling calyayilyioul alniclg palanll éjlal oLl 3minll e g oo dlolsll dydgimnll dlall

Ooloiidl jhlan  20.1

JaTllcapall 3155 ] (538 Loo aoljilly cLagll ra d yllo alaf caly i 3o glas] p hlan o GLoifill hlan )
Jadg oloiill phlael gaycill dydlyo JUA Goo Gloiiill phlae hys (plf degoanll d)la] rewd .a o djLunAl
b gl aall ol ablandl calyh iU gilnifall é)laall paisaall pydillg G336 d bldn calyal vle citlnlenll
connll pllell j 4yell gLy radajanllayllnll ilag agall d yyiasll angall ple pniay Gloiidl p hiaal yay cill

alﬂjjj'Mlng}buiMJwﬂluleﬂLuwpwthﬂdLDJ.ﬂuLDJjJJU_IDb.Du_DJ_JuCI_Cg.DJ.D“M
G o dll4g jlniisul cilagg Elgisdl (sad danydlly Gleiy Lnga §loiidll yhlao (o degnanll 3ai.dnflall digaall
Jadadagnden s cala Egis eo haa Joleill

Cayhall yici aagii Gloifull yhlanl degoanll aycii spadllaglall alagagall e aailill GLoifl palang Gloiy Loga
lgaillasad dyyiandl dnsall palanll japcill oo gvadill aall Jale Gong «Jaléall

alguull jhlan  20.2

dlgyudl phlhn i3 3.4 .ayligoill Laiblhio ralng clagll nle degnanlldjad pac phlan v dlgysudl palan o)
Jg-all e Jagnill jabao A cy gl gra uonidi 3.8 guill Glaiidl calaya (rind gi@g_lengaLgljb.dJllg_c
dhalnllg glic Ul na dlgy sl |'1ji€_nalag;g.nllijj|3!g Jagnill jabno cygiiad)lall caold g halanlladhd malgnlg

dlga g Gaganill alall ayllnll Glygdillg Jalenll 2illg J.ﬁJJlQ_DL_filﬁ ) e

alydll citloen cilegaan Gnnii rillg d cdginll dyaaill calaasill dyllall caluglhnll dlgy il dnilé guAci

¢ alloll alsglhnll Glaniul aails il Jgaall yaaly dallall cailbiglhellad oy ne (530 e dpladiuall
.angninll y ¢ daadleill cul egasnll alaw caloljidl ] iJl.i.LmlJ.;.n_uJ_p 31 naloiacgnanll 531dngninll
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(dni7) adloll galanllajlal cibmlug calaal 20

(4nii) dlguull alin  20.2

oo sl 5l 1200013 oo Jal

ggnanll Cilgisn 5 Calgion I}.m..i'.n ynsial 3

Jiigh jliga gl jliza gl gliza Jigh jliza Jigh jliza
2021
33,962,563 22,152,000 10,976,563 625,500 208,500 dalyo gidla
3,853,029 606,516 1,133,414 2,113,099 *ddaiaun Cilagpang Hgidla
516,240 516,240 Liall (52l Caguiado abwa
38,331,832 22,152,000 11,583,079 2,275,154 2,321,599 conanll

o yisl 5l 1 123 o Jal

cgnanll Cilgion 5 Cilgiou [y il 3

Jagh jliaa Jiagh jliga Jriagh jliya Juiagh jliaa Jiagh jliga
2020
23,523,405 11,111,405 11,800,000 459,000 153,000 dlyo gifla
3,915,574 757,271 2,029,270 1,129,033 *adniun cilagpang Hgifla
198,426 198,426 il sal caguinn caba
27,637,405 11,111,405 12,557,271 2,686,696 1,282,033 cgnanll
534ip plisunll jlagdll lifinul*

Gaulljhlan 20.3

e calpeill adia i elgn Goondl jlenl ra cily il dauii Lo Jonl d0d il phlao (s Ggoudl palan o)
Goull rd dlglaiall calyliiwtll cuon (nle 387 Joolge of Ll dpponall daall g sapall jlajisull §lcii Jolge
€giig cilagagnll éaacin ailia nle I.a.l_u.u: dadao djgnu cilagagall cajgi u.ul_u.ll e Ggouldl jyalan jlasi
J24ig ailnlyilg Ggmll cagytal jaiwnll a ydillg Jlocill cilclhg j4yig gralieall g ajgill dwill calag agall
alalell dnyall g Joadll 6pandg dlugh calyseil) &lal

aupl Jaco jhlan  20.3.1

Gy dllall cilga il dylydiwall dgaaill ilaasill gl dlalell dnyall ol phlas (s agpll Jaen jhlan o)
claen Jnai il avlpall rifla nde aapll Jaeo phlanl degnanll Apeii . Ggoully da5lall jlenl na caljyeill

(6 all) Eliadl (s cagaindnll albwallg (15 alaul) djacio oy
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(énii) dxllall palanll &jla] cibuloug calaal 20

(anid) aupl Galaen phlin 20.3.1

o il aadlaen na dlgdcn djgny dlnianll il il coanll jiluall gigLUjJIQL;__g dymbua Ll Jgaall aagy
:anli padll alpycinll aaldy hlaiadl

aianll 2y (e il oadill Jaaljll
Qiagl jlipa dpubuill blaill pa

178,651 100 (-/+) 2021
205,984 100 (-/+) 2020

aiall Gl jhlan  20.3.2

243 o 6120 gai_snll a2l sl gf aalell anaill o blin (n dpiall el blsa o)
Adadll el Gaypn Jl_c_miu\_a calyaeill

djan dcgnanll ciluglhng cilag agn LI_LCi ol & dyymgr djgny a pdadll cloncl y hlanld egnanll Jaycii Al
iaglljLigall

P.dl.u.ljjljl.('_;uijhh.n 20.3.3

jlenl phhlan d cgnanll piaipa sl gra ciljlodiow il @ lalell & opall gra jeill goo pandlljle il jalao 3 5
Jlocill cilelha j4yiy gy Loga calylniiwdl ¢agid JUA o pd sl

gl alyydll Jala oo ddalell @ nyally d ayandl d inll cilag agall Of ¢in pa il jle il jhlanl d egnanll gayciidl
&)lan Gualing dpc s ju¢ pav il ra cljlafiul Gnaiia cgnanll sal Ll

Jlnll Gulj Gjlal
JLacill peal danall JLall puly it co (rle dhalnll Gloa ga JLall guly d)lal oo sl dcgaanll caaa o

ol eljalaiy pl . Jlocdll cagyhs na cilpacill egad né ale catlyaci dlyalg Joll guly J4aa &)lab dcgnanll pg &
2020 11050133 319 2021 prosanya 31 ud Gudaaiinll Gudiowd! JUa calelya gl gl cabubadl gl calbaan il ua caljaes

130,110,588 ¢ luny cla jadyg dpial callne Jagai ublyial clifiuly d1510ll Gg.4a llna] oo JLall gul) og5i
(s jLian 125,943,288 :2020) 2021 junuya 31 Jra Lnd gl jLina

Jlall Guly ciloljsll 21

lsdisuall lloswipll Glaidll dcgaanll pjili Il (nle 2Lisg syl calydal go cLisil agdic pljali degnanll cioli
(iagh jLizn 10,481,762 :2020) niag4 jLiza 3,687,276 ¢ luny cLinitll 3d calyLiclly Glciy Laya
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aulloll Calgadn
ol cibiglhallg &llall cilagagall o dllall cilgall gaii

U-€ dymgr dygny caliai i a lalell d nydl __"hejlj_ﬂg\_m6_4_][n]|d[4g.Lh.nJ|gﬁ_4,JLnJ|d|Jg_gg.nﬂﬁJJLd|a_n_mJ" 1all )
dyisall Lvinys

alaydll G dlalcllanydlldpda ré cilagagall dlalell dngall 3yaail dnsiiwall cilaljialg ciliaminll A yAgiai
doladl ayulanll lulusll Aale 2.5

dlalell angall oyl Jgaall

dcnanlld llall calibull a Lavie alnall g dlalcll Lavingd gulyd aiy il callighhnllg cilag agall & al4 caini
asnal Jing (s3Jlg A0l G sginmn Jal ol Ialisul «ndy Lad dipnllg dlalell angall ropadl Jgaall gnn
:J54 alalell anyall Gulyal

g «@lilonll calighhall gf cilagagall dnsinill §lgadll na (dlacall pe) didenll jlendll i1 sgimall o

oulsd e Liyanga il Jing (531 il il on (sginmn J-a L g 84 (spal e cnlland 12 (sgimnll— «
g sialin ;¢ gl pialyn JA iy Lagalo d lalell & oyl

oulsd (e Lymga lili Jing (sadlg crlaonll G (sgiomn J-il Loy g5 1 syl padii caglland 3 (sginunll -
Uagalo dlalell dnyall

ojadl Jgaall (sgimnl Ln.ag dlalell a nydlly dla snll 6 egnanll Alagage Jai pdlill Jgaall 3 ngy
JH0ouga 31 rd dlalell dnypall

3 (sgiuall
Jiagh gliza 2021

1,841,961 siLusall of aliy il J1la Go alalell dngally dayan dxllo Cilagago

3 sgisnanll
Juiagh liga 2020

1,510,721 JiLusall gl aly il J1la oo dlalell dnyilly aajan dyllo Cilagagn
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oy il 3 (sgibunll G dyllnll Gilagagall poliallg raliiadl ¢ linll d dilhe L Jgaall a gy
H0ouga 31 (na dlaledl anpdlly Lnlyn i

alyisdnll paln FLuall praln
Gilygaillg Ol o dlassnll
Sileynllg HiLuaall gi alyy il
diaanll dglni Ciliganillg eoanll diall &l nd
Jriagh jlipa Jiagh jliga Juigh jlipa Jriagh jlipa 2021

1,841,961 - 331,240 1,510,721 oo dlalell anygally G330 dxllo Cilagagn
Hiluuall gf aly il gua

1,510,721 - (76,307) 1,587,028 2020
JUa G dlalell anyally aajan dyllo cilagago
JiLall gl alydll

:dagllnll &Gilagagnll pyaail anddiuunll dhgalnll juc dypngall G ianll cang

:djlan gualin

ol .ggainll u_mi J=d §o Lavngadi p i ill calagagell d oyd pdla (| Tl djlanll Gualinll pudipi
drnbua abwiad apaill padodaisnellalagalell jc dymgall il Aanllg ayyail |uJJLmL dadlcinll cilnglenll
.G)-agin Gyl @ hgalall jue il Aanll pa ailppeillalalella nyall gulya

d)cun ju pduul

aupangall cillAanll
alalell aogall s Uasnll duuban Jacall algalall e andi cllul Gycaun pué pdunl

enill Jacn (na 5% dusaia (padill) aalijdl ol %50-10 cachl pnill Jocn daay
¢hnydlalell dnyall (6alyj) alaril nl] (sagi * Gagunill Ggudl calaclrn
u\_ugﬁJLuJ 92,098

na Lanigaalpm Ggunll né GudyLinall i nll degnanll crmiil il linll Jing Gagaill cacal paall Jaco OfF
alylniiou ] peaun 33225 2dc jbicdl
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cgnanll 3 sgiuunll 2 sgisunll 1 sgisunll aJ.".n_}.LCL_Ihg.Jg.n
Jiagh jliza Jiagh jliza Jagh jliga Jiagh gliza

83,175,515 25,500,000 57,675,515 - 2021

ayyloiiuul Caljlac

72,244,626 26,020,000 46,224,626 - 2020

dylniisul caljldc

oy il 3 sgibunll o dylinll pu€ Glagagnll (polisllg paliiall ¢lunll d dslian p Ll Jgaall gy
oo 31 radbledlangally Lvyn i

Alyidnll péla

Gllygnillg

dlepnllg
disall dglni Ciliganillg HLuall praln disall dgloy né
Jiagh gliza gl jliza Jagh jliga Jiagh jliza

25,500,000 3,180 (523,180) 26,020,000 2021 poawsaa 31 u\.n [FX)
dylniiowl caljldac

26,020,000 53,400 (602,400) 26,569,000 2020 poswga 31 pa In4
dyyloiiul caljlac

sy lniiatll Cilylacll puail andaiumnll il G lanllg audill ollul cang

ayylosisul Giljlac

Hghill 334 jlac

aleLsnitll Jlnel a-al4i adylag payild calepnll djlan d dgyh o enall dnulgy jaghill aa jLacll pyai poiy
Ingysin diyall Ggull cillnleng dlilnn caljLacl  suill Ggondl jlend dijlan ol cilepnll djlan & gy 200
d)a-dnll &al43ll & dyn 3iiwi .G33anll jLacll a1 of Livedgo gl Lavicph o Gprall Jaldo dlacnll faldio dylai
ol Lavicysh nd Gpall Jolio d Iaenll cliigll ca I35 Elai wl dlelyn ¢ o Joilon jLac oLl & al43 dijlédn (o]
.a3.anlljLacll alh gi Lavedgo

ajglan Giljlac
dygizull apaill alaasill dlouy ol adiowd guidl ailalpgll dlouy d dgph dh gy dyg holl caljlacll pyadi p iy
Ja<n pl:)j_'i_..uIJ_JLﬁ_dIQ_nL_gJ_m d;jLiJIJ__gL"JIQIJIH!p_deJAQ_D lavsLsuial iy rillg jlacll o @ ngniall
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dsibgll allncll peadypd Gloiidyigild dyllan Jalin janan Juawis pdll a4 il crold dabadl cilgioull JUa
ylig 3-8 dyigild (sgca Lap dcgnanll old 2015 dinw JUa .2012 & yllnll dinwl) @ yllall ayljg Lav cuyllis il
o34l jan dndanll sad pudill 3gé (sgeall adm cuild Guall @3 3ng dllhnll ada clelly Lana el dyllall
«lillig .G Jlhnll a3 cLelly pad (s3lg & cgaanll 3 llal 2021 Gujlo 10 3k jupnill &asan ooc (pflavill
)i 822,191 ¢lyny laglins alya i i 53 51l jananll aps degoanll cunlé galall pflaill p8all ] 1abiiwlg

Al sy dyaiiall diowl] goaall ilwall gl alydll gLy né risgh

19-254g4 pili 24

o Loo @ llell (sgimn (e dyalpén glalio dac juc jLiniilll na (“-1934a94”) Ligygh gugyaa dila joiui
dgolldlaplaisdlaiull radapaga G-asipac allla (] cial Lo dgalniadllg aylhill dh i iill Johhci iLa
Al audowdl wdlgell oo caranill a aildo julad alail pllell (sgiimn (nle dyadillg aullall calhludl cinldg

aladll piegallnll cilagagall e d il dalaiall ciblaill dlaianll il ilill Laybicl nédegnanll cisa
1l .¢la gng .aagalnll aalinll cilnglenll Gl 3Ll dyladll adipal pyydi Joaal dlasanll ¢ linll Jinig .dcgnanll
pa-c dalyj jili Jljg g . Glgomdll ra albaill dabwa calagagall d yyiasdl pydll JIj 1lg éJain Glgowdll JIjs
e alall 53 jilillg Lanjyo ppaiii poa é conanll pnioui cagam o llillig Lipaaii d yalniaall Syl s Oyl

o iin Gulwl
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Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

Chairman’s Speech

Dear Shareholders - Ajial Real Estate
and Entertainment Company

On my behalf and on behalf of my colleagues, the
members of the Board of Directors, | am pleased
to present you, the 25th Annual Report of Ajial Real
Estate & Entertainment Co., accompanied with the
financial results for the fiscal year ended on 31st
December 2021.

Dear Shareholders:

Given the health and economic crises Kuwait

and the whole world is going through due to the
spread of the new Corona virus, which affected
businesses in Kuwait. Nevertheless, the company
adopted proactive policies and took precautionary
measures that enabled it to face the crisis from a
position of strength and allowed the Company to
play a vital role in achieving financial stability. Merely
focusing on continuing the company’s projects under
construction (Al-Andalus project), a multi-purpose
project located in Hawalli, on a land of 10,300 Sgm
and a built-up area of 58,600 sgm approximately.
The project contains offices, medical clinics,
commercial shops, and a cinema, The project has
reached 90% completion rate and is expected to
open in 2022.

On another note, the Company enjoyed a successful
run this year with a significant increase in its rental
income of Ajial Commercial and Entertainment
Complex, a landmark in Fahaheel area. Similarly, the
rental incomes of Ajial’s associates Al Hamra Real
Estate and Al Madar Al Thahabia Co. (Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia) have also increased respectively which
had a positive impact on the Company.

Financial Report

The balance sheet of Ajial Real Estate & Entertainment
Co. clearly explains the Company’s financial position
for the fiscal year ended on 31/12/2021. The
Company’s net profit has reached KD 4,167,300 with
an EPS of 21.54 fils compared to KD 1,375,919 in
2020, with an EPS of 7.11 fils, which represents an
increase of 202.9%. Furthermore, the operational
income has increased 98.4% from KD 2,549,551 in
2020 to KD 5,058,881 in 2021.

Administrative and general expenses have risen
33.4% from KD 779,984 in 2020 to KD 1,040,646 in
2021. Whereas, finance costs which have fallen 7.8%
from KD 466,642 in 2020 to KD 430,460 in 2021. The
consolidated balance sheet shows that the assets
have increased 8% from KD 150,765,402 in 2020
to KD 162,806,901 in 2021, and total liabilities have
increased 31.9% from KD 24,848,493 in 2020 to KD
32,781,679 in 2021. Moreover, Shareholders’ equity
is up by 3.3% from KD 125,916,909 in 2020 to KD
130,025,222 in 2021.

The board of directors proposed the distribution of
5% cash dividends for the shareholders in the fiscal
year ended on 31st December, 2021.

In the end, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend my sincere gratitude and appreciation to all
Shareholders, Stakeholders, the Board and Staff
members of this great company. We look forward to
a future filled with higher achievements by laying the
groundwork for more progress and growth.

Yours sincerely,

Shk. Ali Al Abdullah Al Khalifah Al Sabah
Chairman
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Al Andalus Project

At A Glance

Al Andalus is Kuwait’s newest, trendiest mixed-use
project and community hub. It is a lifestyle destination—
for individuals, families, and businesses alike.

Al Andalus is a unique, rich and ultimately-fulfilling
fusion of retail and entertainment experiences and
interactions. The venue offers a diverse assortment
of non-retail and service-based outlets, as well as
alternative property types and limited-time pop-ups
for niche shopping.

Although the nearby area has a reputation for being
congested, Al Andalus promises ultimate ease and
convenience from the beginning of your visit. From an
easy-to-access dedicated entryway and exit right off
the highway, to the more than ample parking space
available (accommodating more than 1,200 vehicles).
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Project owners
Location

Floors

Total plot area
Total built-up area
Ground breaking
Expected opening

Components

Current project completion

Ajial Real Estate Company
Off the Fahaheel Expressway
18

10,350sgm

59,000sgm

23 July, 2019

Early 2022

*  Retail

+  Food and beverage

+  Community spaces

*  Entertainment

+  Beauty and wellness

*  Clinics
+  Offices
90%
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Components
Ground floor Clinics
Retail, food and beverage, entertainment, community 6 floors
spaces
Offices
Units: 27 9 floors
Mezzanine Basement
Retail, food and beverage, entertainment, Cinema, 11 screens
community spaces
Facilities
Units: 30 «  Parking lot connected to building by bridgeway,
total 1,200 parking spots
First floor
Gym(s), spa(s) + Coordinated elevators separating clinics, offices,
gym(s), cinema, and retail spaces
Location

Al Andalus’ name was not chosen at random. The
name pays homage to one of Kuwait’'s earliest
recreation venues: Cinema Al Andalus - the site of
which is now home to Al Andalus.

Located right in the heart of Kuwait where the buzz
never stops, Al Andalus is conveniently situated near
the exit of the Fahaheel Expressway and directly off of
Beirut Street.



Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

Acknowledgement & Undertaking
of Integrity and Fairness of Statements

Kuwait on 7th February 2022

To the Shareholders of Ajial Real Estate & Entertainment Co.

Acknowledgement & Undertaking of Integrity and Fairness of Statements

The Board of Directors acknowledge and undertake that the financial reports are provided in a fair and a sound
way, they present all financial aspects of the company, including data and operational results, and they are

prepared accurately in accordance with the International Accounting Standards approved by Capital Markets
Authority for the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

Shk. Ali Abdulla Al Khalifah Al Sabah Shk. Hamad Mubarak Al Jaber Al Sabah
Chairman Vice Chairman

Mr. Abdulaziz Faisal Al Khatrash Mr. Mohamed Abdulrazzaq Al Kandari
Board Member Board Member

Ms. Tahani Al Ahmi
Board Member
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Corporate Governance Report 2021

Rule 01: Construct a Balanced Board Composition
Brief on the composition of the Board of Directors, as follows:

Name Board Member Status Education Date of Election/Appointment
(Executive/Non-Executive/ Qualification of Board Member/Secretary
Independent), or Board Secretary

Shk. Ali Abdullah Al Khalifah Al Sabah Non- Executive Board Member BA 25 JUNE 2020

Shk. Hamad Mubarak Al Jaber Al Sabah  Non- Executive Board Member BA 25 JUNE 2020

Mr. Abdulaziz Faisal Al Khatrash Executive Board Member BA 25 JUNE 2020

Ms. Tahani Al Ajmi Independent Member MA 25 JUNE 2020

Mr. Mohammed Abdulrazzak Al Kandari  Independent Member BA 25 JUNE 2020

Mr. Abdulwahab Nabeel Al Oraifan Board Secretary BA 28 JUNE 2020

Brief on the professional experienc of the Board of Directors:

Shk. Ali Abdullah Al Khalifah Al Sabah:

Skh. Al Sabah has over 40 years of experience in the
banking and real estate sectors. He was the chairman
of Tijara & Real Estate Investment Co. and a Board
member in Gulf bank and Kuwait Real Estate bank,
which later on transformed to (Kuwait International
Bank).

Shk. Hamad Mubarak Al Jaber Al Sabah:

Shk. Al Sabah is the vice chairman of the Board and
board member in Mjas General Trading Co. and has
over 13 years of experience in the investment and
real estate sectors. Shk. Al Sabah holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration from Boston
University, USA.

Mr. Abdulaziz Faisal Al Khatrash:

Mr. Al Khatrash is a board member and CEO of Ajial
Real Estate & Entertainment Co. has over 20 years of
experience in the investment and real estate sectors.
He previously held the position of deputy CEO in Tijara
& Real Estate Investment Co. Mr. Al Khatrash holds a
Bachelor’s degree in MIS from Northeastern University,
USA.

Ms. Tahani Al Ajmi:

Ms. Al Ajmi has over 24 years of experience various
sectors such as investment, real estate and market
research. She is the deputy CEO in Tijara & Real Estate
Investment Co. and an independent board member in
Ajial Real Estate & Entertainment Co. Ms. Al Ajmi holds
a Master degree in Strategic Management.

Mr. Mohammed Abdulrazzak Al Kandari:

Mr. Al Kandari has over 20 years of experience in
the investment, real estate and banking sectors. He
is a Board member in Commercial Bank of Kuwait,
Technology Industrial Gases Production Co., and
Venture Capital Bank (Bahrain). As well as the
executive vice president in Securities Group, Kuwait.
Mr. Al Kandari holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration and Finance.
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Brief on the Company’s Board of Directors’ meetings for the year 2021, through the
following statement:

Name of Member Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Number
(1) 2 (3) 4) (5) (6) of
10/2/21 24/3/21 26/4/21 28/7/21 25/10/21 20/12/21 Meetings

Shk. Ali Abdullah v v v v v v 6

Al-Sabah

(Chairman)

Shk. Hamad Mubarak v v v v v v 6

Al-Sabah

(Vice-Chairman)

Mr. Abdulaziz Faisal Al- v v v v Vv v 6

Khatrash

(Board Member & CEO)

Ms. Tahani v v v v v v 6

Al-Ajmi

(Independent Member)

Mr. Mohammed Abdulrazzak v v v v v v 6

Al-Kandari

(Independent Member)

A summary of how to apply the requirements of registration and coordination and
keeping the minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors of the company:

The role of the Board Secretary of Ajial is to improve the efficiency of Board meetings and to ensure proper
implementation of the resolutions made by the Board and Committee Members. To do so, minutes of meetings
are documented and sorted out for each meeting, together with agendas and reports which are all kept in a
safe and secure place. All minutes contain lists of attendees, absentees, topics of discussion and submitted
reports and proposals. All are accessible and available for all Board Members at any time according to corporate
governance rules and regulations.

An acknowledgment by the independent member that the controls of independence are
available.

a copy of these acknowledgements is attached to the report.

12
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Rule 02: Establish Appropriate Roles and Responsibilities

Brief on how the company defines the policy of the tasks, responsibilities, and
duties of each of the Members of the Board of Directors and executive management
members, as well as the powers and authorities delegated to the executive
management:

The Board of Directors have developed the BOD charter which defined the roles and responsibilities of the Board
and Executive Management as per the approved Company’s organization structure. The Board also approved
the policies and procedures of Board Committees and the Company’s departments in detail.

Powers and authorities delegated to the Executive Management are as follows:

ook~

Carry out and implement the strategies set out by the Board of Directors.

Develop executive objectives of each department and link such plans with the overall plan.

Overall monitoring of all departments and operations.

Ensure proper coordination between departments.

Problem solving issues related to the Management.

Review and update the internal policies and procedures of the company and accordingly distribute it to the
Employees.

Achievements of the Board of Directors during the year:

PN~

Continue with the development of Al Andalus project.

Decreased as such as possible the financial losses incurred from the Novel Corona Virus Pandemic.
Follow up on the risk reduction strategies periodically with the executive management.

Retaining the Company’s investors and clients by responding to the executive management’s visions.

13
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Brief about the application of the formation requirements of independent specialized
committees by the Board of Directors:

Name of Committee

Audit Committee

Risk Committee

Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Date of Formation 28 June 2020 28 June 2020 28 June 2020
& Term 3 years 3 years 3 years
Number of Meetings 7 4 1

Committee Members
and Chairman

Shk. Hamad Al Sabah
(Chairman)

Ms. Tahani Al Ajmi
(Member)

Mr. Mohammed Al Kandari
(Member)

Ms. Tahani Al Ajmi
(Chairman)

Mr. Abdulaziz Al Khatrash
(Member)

Mr. Mohammed Al Kandari
(Member)

Shk. Hamad Al Sabah
(Chairman)

Mr. Abdulaziz Al Khatrash
(Member)

Ms. Tahani Al Ajmi
(Member)

Committee Functions
and Achievements during
the year

Regular review of the
company’s financial
statements and the
observations made by the
external auditors.
Consult the board on

the appointment of the
External auditors and
monitor their activities.
Monitor the company
internal audit function
and recommend the
appointment and
termination of the internal
auditor.

Ensure compliance with
the rules and regulations
of the regulatory
authorities.

Evaluate systems and
mechanisms of identifying,
measuring and monitoring
various types of risks that
may face the company

as well as the company’s
acceptable risk level.
Prepare regular reports
on the company’s risk
exposure and present
these reports to the
Board.

Approve the renumeration
of the Board of

Directors and Executive
Management.

Evaluate Board of
Directors and Board
Committees

Ensure that Members

of a Board of Directors
independency is valid.
Discuss the renumeration
report.

A summary of how to apply the requirements that allow the Members of the Board of
Directors to obtain accurate and timely information and data:

The Company has made all information available to Board Members that enables them to carry out their
supervisory role over the Executive Management. Any meetings may be arranged with the Executive Management
through the Board Secretary. Board Members, especially Independent Members, are encouraged to visit the
Company with or without the presence of the Top Management. In addition, if Board Members have any query
or question about any information or documents, they are free to approach the Board Secretary first so that he
can coordinate with the respective department Manager and the Board Member.

14
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Rule 03: Recruit Highly Qualified Candidates for the Board of Directors & Executive
Management

Brief about the application of the formation requirements of the nominations and
remunerations Committee:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has been formed in accordance with corporate governance rules
and regulations issued by Capital Markets Authority taking into consideration the following requirements in the
selection of Committee Members:

1. The Committee is comprised of three members.
2. The Committee is chaired by a Non-Executive Board Member.
3. Chairman of the Board or CEO may be a Committee Member.

The objective of this committee is to attract highly experienced skilled Employees and to retain Employees with
potential. Hence improving the competitive edge of the Company by carrying out the following functions and
responsibilities:

1. Develop a clear remuneration policy for Board Members and executive management.

2. Ensure that the remuneration policy is in line with the interest of the Shareholders.

3. Prepare an annual governance report that includes the total remunerations given to Members of a Board
of Directors, and the executive body and the managers; whether cash or benefits or privileges, of whatever
nature and title, directly or indirectly through the company or Subsidiary Companies.

4. Recommend on the nomination of Executive positions.

Report on the remunerations to the Members of the Board of Directors and Executive
Management:

1. Summary of the company’s policy of compensations and incentives, specifically
that related to Members of a Board of Directors, the Executive Management and the
Managers.

The Remuneration policy is a payment plan of compensation and bonuses in compliance with Corporate
Governance requirements issued by the Capital Markets Authority, Kuwait. It determines the appropriate pay
rate for each particular set of responsibilities and tasks. It controls how the pay will increase as employees take
on more responsibilities and tasks or move up in higher roles.

It ensures that remuneration package offered to the Company’s Board of Directors and employees is competitive
and ensures that the Company is able to attract and retain suitably qualified and experienced personnel. The
remuneration offered in Ajial is structured so as to appropriately align management’s interests with shareholders’
interests and promote value creation in the Company. The remuneration policy and remuneration paid is
appropriately disclosed by the Company in accordance with CMA guidelines.

The policy shall consist of the following guidelines:

1. Related to the KPIs as applicable to the directors/employees,

2. Consistent with the long term and short-term strategy and objectives of the Company,

3. Commensurate with the size, nature and the degree of risks of the role, as well as experience and qualifications
of the director/employee of the Company

Balancing the structure of payroll that serves as an incentive to attract qualified individuals.

Prepared in coordination with the Nominations committee.

ok~
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Executive management and managers Remuneration:

The executive management and managers’ remuneration policy is designed in such a way that it motivates
executive management and managers to pursue long term growth objectives and it is also aligned with their
performance. It also forbids employees from entering into transactions and arrangements detrimental to the
Company’s interests.

This policy ensures that remuneration of the Board is within the ceilings provided by the regulatory authorities.
The Chairman, Vice Chairman and other members of the Board may receive additional remuneration for their
additional duties. The non-executive directors are remunerated by the way of fees in form of cash and not
provided with any retirement benefits. Furthermore, they are not granted equity-based remuneration schemes
unless approved by shareholders.

Procedure for recommendation of Remuneration

The remunerations Committee shall recommend the salary of the directors/employees to the Board after
considering the profit of the year and in accordance with CMA guidelines. The Board of directors shall then
approve the remuneration to members of Board, executive management and managers with or without
modifications.

2. Statements of the remunerations of the Board of Directors and the Executive
Management:

Remunerations and benefits of Members of Board of Directors
Remunerations and benefits through the parent Company
Total Fixed remuneration Variable remuneration
number of and benefits and Benefits
members (Kuwaiti Dinar) (Kuwaiti Dinar)
Health insurance Annual Committees’
remuneration remuneration
5 - 75,000 -
Total remunerations and benefits granted to five senior executives
who have received the highest remunerations
Remunerations and Benefits through the parent company
Total _— ’ - Variabl$
= IXed remuneration an enerits remuneration
executive (Kuwaiti Dinar) and Benefits
Monthly Health & Life Annual Tickets Leave & Social Security Annual
salaries total insurance Indemnity Benefits remuneration
(for the year) Benefits
5 238,200 7,575 5,000 38,337 11,385 109,000

3. Any substantial deviations from remuneration policy approved by Board of Directors.
No.
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Rule 04: Safeguard the Integrity of Financial Reporting

Written undertakings by both the Board of Directors and the Executive Management of
the soundness and integrity of the prepared financial reports:

The Executive Management have submitted a written undertaking that the Company’s financial reports are
provided in a sound and fair manner, presented all financial aspects of the Company, including data and
operational results, and prepared in accordance with the International Accounting Standards approved by
the Capital Markets Authority. Moreover, the annual report submitted to Shareholders includes the Board’s
undertaking / acknowledgement of the soundness and integrity of all financial statements and reports related to
the Company’s activities.

Brief about the application of the formation requirements of the audit committee:

The Audit Committee was formed in accordance with the corporate governance rules and regulations issued
by Capital Markets Authority, taking into consideration the following requirements in the selection of Committee
Members:

Committee to be formed of at least three members including an Independent Member.

Chairman of the Board and CEO shall not be Committee Members.

Chairman of Committee shall be a Non-Executive Board Member.

Committee shall include at least a member of educational qualification and/or practical experience in the
accounting and financial fields.

PN~

In case of any conflicts between the recommendations of the audit committee and
the resolutions of the Board of Directors, a statement shall be included detailing and
clarifying the recommendations and the reason(s) of the Board of Directors non-
compliance therewith:

There has been no conflict between the Audit Committee recommendations and Board decisions which would
require a detailed statement that explains such conflicts.

Verification of the independence and neutrality of the external Auditor:
The Company takes into account the principles and rules of Capital Markets Authority towards ensuring
independence and neutrality of External Auditors. Following the best governance practices, the Company shall

evaluate the External Auditor on annual basis based on a specific mechanism focusing on the performance,
professionalism and independence under the supervision of the Audit Committee.

17



Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

Rule 05: Apply Sound Systems of Risk Management and Internal Audit

A brief statement on the application of the formation requirements of a department/ an
office/ an independent unit of risk management:

The Company has appointed a Risk Management Coordinator whose responsibility is to identify and monitor the
risks associated with the Company’s activities. As a result, the Company’s risk exposure has been evaluated by
preparing periodic reports to the Risk Management Committee. As best practice measures, the Risk Management
Coordinator is fully independent by reporting directly to the Board through the Risk Management Committee
without granting him any financial authorities.

A brief about the application of the formation requirements of the risk management
committee:

Risk Management Committee is formed in accordance with corporate governance rules and regulations issued
by Capital Markets Authority, taking into account the following requirements in the selection of the Committee
Members:

1. Committee to be formed of at least three members, including an Independent Member.
2. Chairman of the Board shall not be a Committee Member.
3. Chairman of Committee shall be a Non-Executive Board Member.

Summary clarifying the control and internal audit systems:

The Company has a good internal control environment that includes all company activities. The organizational
structure of the Company supports the dual audit (Four Eyes Principles). An external office has been appointed
to prepare an Internal Control Review (ICR) report which allows the Company to identify and address the
weaknesses of such controls.

Regarding the issuance of the executive bylaws of the Capital Markets Authority — Module 15 - Rule 5 - Article 6-9.
The Company have appointed an independent auditing firm to revise and evaluate its internal audit function for
the past 3 years. More importantly, to ensure the full compliance of the internal Audit unit with CMA regulations,
international Internal Audit standards, and ethical standards. Ajial aims that the internal audit function continues
to be an added value to the Company.

A brief statement on the application of the formation requirements the internal audit
department / office / unit:

The Audit Committee considered the cost/benefit of establishing an internal audit unit within the Company or
appoint an external firm to carry out the internal audit activities. As a result, the Committee decided to appoint an
external firm to cooperate with the Company’s internal Audit Coordinator to carry out such activities. The Audit
Committee should ensure the efficiency of the Company’s operations and that the internal audit structure covers
all the Company’s areas of activities.
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Rule 06: Promote Code of Conduct and Ethical Standards

A summary of the business charter including standards and determinants of code of
conduct and ethical standards:

The code of conduct and ethical standards charter the company adopted guides the company’s dealings with all
clients, employees, and the community in which it operates. Implementing this charter is considered one of the
most important components of the corporate governance framework. The Board and Executive Management are
fully committed to support the application of these standards regardless of the potential negative consequences.
Failure to adhere to these standards will be investigated and may lead to disciplinary action being taken or refer
certain cases to the regulatory authorities.

The Company is also committed to achieving the highest levels of governance and has established those values
by applying measures to maintain confidentiality of information by adopting a Whistle-blowing policy which
encourages Employees to report any complaint related to bad behavior / illegal or unprofessional actions. The
company aims to provide new tools for better communication and to allow whistleblowers to disclose their
communications in full confidentiality.

Summary of the policies and mechanisms on reducing the conflicts of interest:

Conflict of interest occurs when the interest of an Employee is in conflict with that of the Company. In order to
ensure maximum levels of transparency and objectivity, the Company at all times ensures that its transactions
are carried out on the basis of equality, fairness and integrity. The policy of related party transactions has been
reviewed and considered to be consistent with the Company’s activities. In addition, the Company adopted
a set of procedures regulating disclosure of potential conflicts of interest and the mechanism of addressing
it. The Audit Committee is generally responsible for implementing the policy of conflict of interest as well as
monitoring and reviewing the implementation of its procedures. However, the audit committee may delegate
the daily responsibilities of overseeing the compliance and the implementation of that policy and procedures to
whom it sees fit.

Procedures for Mitigating Conflict of Interest:

1. Board members and senior officers should not have any direct or indirect interest in the contracts and
transactions of Company unless approved by General Assembly or was done at “arm’s length” or at
competitive market rates.

2. The Company should not grant any unauthorized credit facility or provide any guarantee to a board member.

3. The employees shall not offer, ask for, provide or accept anything of value for favorable treatment from the
Company, customers, suppliers or potential suppliers or others.

4. Those applying for tenders, contracts, supplying goods, for employment or rendering services, have to
declare their interests including relationships with Director or Senior officers with the Company.
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Rule 07: Ensure Timely and High-Quality Disclosure & Transparency

Summary of the application of mechanisms for presentation and accurate and transparent disclosure that
define aspects, areas and characteristics of disclosure:

The company aim is to enhance the accountability of the Company and its management, towards its stakeholders
in general by giving access to the accurate and consistent information that will enable them to understand its
governance, strategy, policies, activities, practices and facilitate evaluation of its performance. In compliance
with the requirements of CMA, the company applies the policy of disclosure and transparency on the Board
of directors and employees of the company. The Company shall consistently make disclosures of inside
information that is precise, has not been made public, relates directly or indirectly to the company; and if made
public, would have a significant effect on the price of the company’s shares. The policy includes [a] methods for
disclosing financial and non-financial information [b] ways to disclose all information transparently, in a timely
manner, without discrimination [c] procedures through which information is categorized in terms of its material
importance, nature and periodicity.

The Company made the following disclosures during the year:

The issuance of the interim financial statements.

List of Insiders.

The shareholders who hold 5% or more of the company’s share capital.
BOD meeting results.

All transactions made in the company’s treasury shares.
Announcement of the Annual General Assembly meeting and its results.
Disclosure of lawsuits and courts judgements.

Disclosure of rescheduling of financial facilities.

©NO O~ WN

Brief about the application of the requirements of the Board of Directors disclosure and
executive management disclosures, and the managers’ disclosures:

The Company has in place a special record comprising the disclosures and notifications made by the Insiders,
Members of the Board of Directors, the Executive Management, and the Managers. It also contains all data
related to compensations, salaries, incentives and other financial benefits that were granted directly or indirectly
by the company or Subsidiary Companies. All shareholders of the company shall have the right to access this
record during the normal working hours of the company without any fees or charges. Moreover, the company
insures to update this data record periodically to reflect the reality of the conditions of Related Parties.

A brief statement on the application of the formation requirements of a unit of investors
affairs:

The Company established a unit for handling Investors’ affairs which is in charge of providing information and
reports required for its potential Investors. This unit is run by the Account’s Manager but under the supervision
of the CEO. Moreover, policies and procedures have been put in place to ensure proper independence of the
Investors’ affairs unit which enables these Investors to have timely access to relevant information and reports.

Brief on how to develop the infrastructure for the information technology on which it
shall significantly rely on in the disclosure processes:

The Company seeks to further enhance the use of its IT functions to build proper communication channels with
Shareholders, Investors and Stakeholders. A corporate governance section has been created in the Company’s
website, in which all updated information is made available to assist Shareholders and Investors to exercise their
rights to evaluate the Company’s performance.
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Rule 08: Respect the Rights of Shareholders

A summary of the application of the requirements for the identification and protection
of the general rights of shareholders, in order to ensure fairness and equality amongst
all shareholders:

The Company enforces the application of the shareholders rights policy to ensure that Shareholders have timely
access to the company information; including its financial performance, objectives, corporate governance and
the Company’s risk exposure. This will enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights in an efficient manner and
allow Shareholders and Investors to easily interact with the Company.

The following are the general rights of a shareholder mentioned in the Company’s articles of association:

1. Any shareholder shall be entitled to authorize another person to attend to the general assembly in accordance
with a special proxy or an authorization prepared by the company for this purpose.

2. Allow shareholders to participate effectively in the general assembly and vote on the resolutions thereof.

3. Develop an apparent policy for profits distribution of various types (cash/ non-cash) so that shareholders’

and company’s interests are accomplished.

The general assembly shall disclose the proposed profits distribution and the date of distribution.

When preparing the general assembly’s agenda, the Board of Directors shall consider adding the matters /

items that shareholders wants to discuss to the agenda of general assembly.

ok

A summary of the creation of a special record at the Clearing Agency as part of the
requirements for on-going monitoring of shareholders’ data:

A record is kept with the Clearing Company that contains the names, nationalities, address and number of shares
of each Shareholder of Ajial. Any changes to this information are updated accordingly. Any Stakeholder may
request access to information in the aforesaid record from Ajial or the Kuwait Clearing Company.

Brief on how to encourage shareholders to participate and vote in the company’s
general assembly meetings:

The Company encourages Shareholders to exercise their rights to participate in the Company’s Annual General

Meeting and vote regardless of their level or position. The Company’s Shareholders’ rights policy sets out the
mechanism of participation and voting in the Annual General Meetings.
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Rule 09: Recognize the Roles of Stakeholders

Brief about conditions and policies that ensure protection and recognition of the rights
of stakeholders:

As mentioned in the stakeholder’s policy the company is committed towards its stakeholders as follows:

1.

2.

Stakeholders: To achieve sustainable value for stakeholders and strive to achieve good financial returns and
work for the benefit of the stakeholders.

Suppliers and service providers: Dealing in a direct and clear manner and on the basis of trust. Striving to
build and maintain good relationships with suppliers and service providers, and the company must ensure
that information related to them is kept confidential

Employees: Dealing with employees with dignity and respect and providing equal job opportunities to
all employees in the field of employment, which included matters related to recruitment, compensation /
benefits, professional development and promotions. It is the duty of the Board of Directors to provide a safe
and healthy work environment Taking into consideration respect for human and employee rights.
Society: Participation in improving the standard of living wherever the company operates and ensuring that
resources are used reasonably in order to preserve the environment.

Brief on how to encourage stakeholders to keep track of the company’s various
activities:

The Company allows Stakeholders to access information relevant to the Company’s activities in an easy and
timely manner. All Stakeholders are welcomed to express their views about the Company. The Company’s
policies encourage Stakeholders to inform the Board of any practices prohibited in the Whistleblowing policy.
The company and the stakeholders must also ensure the confidentiality of the information, and the two parties
should conclude an agreement in this regard.
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Rule 10: Encourage and Enhance Performance

A summary of the application of the requirements for the development of mechanisms
that allow Members of the Board of Directors and Executive Management to attend the
training programs and courses regularly:

The purpose of the Board of Directors & Executive Management training policy & procedures is to train the
Company’s directors and members of the executive management, to identify the area of improvement and to
articulate the Company’s organizational goals for properly managing operations of the Company and also to
keep them abreast with the latest developments in the administrative, financial and economic fields.

Board Members and Executive Management performance is evaluated each year. Thus, the Company provides
ongoing training programs for Board and Executive Management as per their training requirements. Professional/
Personal development activities for members must be approved in advance by the Board of Directors for which
a training budget is prepared.

Brief on how to evaluate the performance of the Board as a whole, and the performance
of each Member of the Board of Directors and the Executive Management:

The Company applies a self-appraisal policy for the Board and each Member separately through a set of
questions which allows each Member to evaluate themselves. In order to evaluate their achievements and
assess the challenges faced, and how it impacted the work quality and performance. Eventually this will help
them to benefit from the process and become more efficient. The company uses Key Performance Indicators
(KPls) to evaluate its Executive Management. At the end of the year a comprehensive evaluation is done for
each employee by their respective managers. This evaluation is based on weights and percentages, that differ

for every employee, to measure the employee’s performance in achieving his/her goals.

An overview of the Board of Director’s efforts in asserting the importance of corporate
value creation with the employees at the company through achieving the company’s
strategic goals and improving key performance indicators:

The Board of Directors is committed to develop an integrated reporting system to be a communication tool by
setting out mechanisms relevant to corporate strategy, governance, performance and future expectations. This
will create value in the long term and bridge the gap between current company reports and the information
required by the investors in order to evaluate investment values and company forecasts etc.
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Rule 11: Focus on the Importance of Corporate Social Responsibility

A summary of the development of a policy to ensure a balance between each of the
company goals and society goals:

Corporate Social Responsibility [CSR] represents the continuous commitment of the Company through ethical
behaviour, to achieve sustainable development for society in general and its employees in particular. The Board
of Directors sets out the CSR policies and procedures for balancing social and environmental objectives with
the Company’s economic objectives and as part of its initiatives to fulfil its social responsibility to stakeholders,
employees, community and environment in the course of conducting its business operations.

The Board, Human Resources [HR] department and employees are allocated CSR responsibilities as
follows:

Board of directors:

«  Oversight of social and environmental risk management and CSR performance

«  Ensure a balance between the Company’s objectives and the Community’s objectives

« Highlight the Company’s efforts in community service by implementing specific mechanisms and programs,
establishing performance benchmarks, comparison with peers and CSR work plans

Human Resources:

«  Creating CSR awareness through educational programs for employees.

+ Planning and implementing awareness programs for community to identify the social responsibility according
to clear mechanisms and highlighting the issues that contribute to social development.

Employees:
«  All employees are responsible for implementing CSR activities as formulated by the Board on an ongoing
basis. Employee involvement is a critical success factor for CSR performance.

Brief about the programs and mechanisms helping to highlight the company’s efforts
exerted in the field of social work:

In order to achieve and maintain a proper balance between Socio-Environmental objectives and the
Company’s business objectives, the Company aims to meet its obligation towards Society, Stakeholders,
Employees, and the Environment by immersing in the field of Social work which includes but not limited
to the following:

+  To support national manpower and boost its competitive edge and efficiency.

Shk. Hamad Mubarak Al Jaber Al Sabah
Vice Chairman
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Audit Committee Report
For the Year Ended on 31 December 2021

Introduction

The Committee is comprised of three members, as follows:

1. Shk. Hamad Mubarak Al Sabah (Head of Committee )
2. Mr. Mohamad Abdulrazzak Al Kandari (Member)
3. Ms. Tahani Al Ajmi (Member)

Committee Meetings and Performance/Achievements:

The Audit Committee holds its meetings on regular basis at least once each quarter of the year and when required
or necessary. The Committee’s Secretary prepares the minutes of meeting for each meeting and keeps track of
all of the Committee’s resolutions. The Committee held 7 meetings in during the year. The key achievements of
the Committee during the year were as follows:

+  Ensuring soundness, transparency and integrity of the financial reports by reviewing periodically the financial
statements and submitting their opinions and recommendations to the Board.

+ Making recommendations to the Board on the appointment of the External Auditors and monitor their
performance to ensure that they are not providing any other services other than the audit profession.

«  Supervising the Internal Audit activities and provide recommendations on the recruitment and termination of
the Internal Audit firm which carries out such activities for the Company.

+  Reviewing the Internal Audit plan and results of the Internal Audit reports. And resolving all audit observations
on those reports.

« Viewing the Internal Control Review Report (ICR).

+ Assigned an independent firm to revise and evaluate the current internal audit firm and prepare the QAR
report.

+ Analyzing the applied accounting policies and provide the Board of Directors with opinion and recommendation
in this regard

«  Ensuring the Company complies with all rules and regulations of the regulatory bodies.

Committee Opinion on Company Internal Control Process

As per Committee follow up and supervision of internal audit in 2021, and based on risk assessment, the
Committee believes that the Company has adequate and efficient internal control environment in place, as
no material weaknesses were found, and no failures have been detected in the internal control systems. The
Executive Management continues to implement internal controls in a manner ensuring protection of the Company
assets and integrity of financial statements. Along with the efficiency of the operational activities of the Company
with its financial, administrative and accounting processes.

Furthermore, excellent cooperation and coordination at the professional and practical level remains in place with
Internal Auditors, which was reinforced by holding regular meetings to exchange information on matters related
to Audit, Administrative Control and Risk Management. Also, the audit committee and the internal Auditor have
met regularly during the year where they reviewed the results of the internal audit reports and ensured that the
necessary corrective actions were taken concerning the observations stated in such reports.

Moreover, continuous communication of strategies, annual reports and individual plans have been made between

the Internal Auditors and Executive Management to ensure adequate and efficient supervision in order to address
any weaknesses and failures.

Shk. Hamad Mubarak Al Jaber Al Sabah
Head of Audit Committee
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders
of Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P.

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. (the
“Parent Company”) and its subsidiary (collectively, the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed
the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders
of Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Key Audit Matters (continued)

a) Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties of the Group represent a significant portion of the total assets as at 31 December 2021
and are carried at fair value. The management of the Group determines the fair value of its investment properties
on periodical basis and uses external appraisers to support the valuation at year-end. The valuation of the
investment properties at fair value is highly dependent on estimates and assumptions such as rental value,
occupancy rates, discount rates, financial stability of tenants, market knowledge and historical transactions.
In addition, the significant impact of the COVID-19 pandemic has led to additional uncertainty in arriving at
reasonable assumptions. Further, the disclosures relating to the assumptions are relevant, given the estimation
uncertainty and sensitivity of the valuations. Due to the size and complexity of the valuation of investment
properties and the importance of the disclosures relating to the assumptions used in the valuation, we identified
this as a key audit matter. The Group’s policies for fair valuation of investment properties are presented in
accounting policies in Note 2 of the consolidated financial statements.

Our audit procedures included, among others, the following:

- We have reviewed the assumptions and estimates made by the management and the external appraisers,
appropriateness of the valuation technique and reasonableness of data used in the valuation.

- We have evaluated the management’s sensitivity analysis to ascertain the impact of reasonably possible
changes to key assumptions on the fair value of properties such as rental income, occupancy rates, discount
rates, and historical transactions.

- We have considered the objectivity, independence and expertise of the external appraisers.

- We assessed that the significant assumptions and related uncertainties are appropriately reflected in the
sensitivity disclosure in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

b) Impairment of investment in associates

The carrying value and the related share of results of investment in associates is significant to the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and to the Group’s results. The Group assesses if there are any indicators
of impairment in the carrying value of its investment in associates. Such assessment considers any significant
adverse changes in economy, market, legal environment, industry or the political environment. Accordingly, we
have considered this as a key audit matter. The accounting policies relating to investment in an associate is given
in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Our audit procedures included, among others, the following:

- We evaluated management’s considerations of the impairment indicators of investment in associates.

- In such consideration, we assessed whether any decline in value exists, significant adverse changes in the
economy, market, legal environment, industry or the political environment in which the associates operate,
structural changes in the industry in which the associates operate, changes in the political environment affecting
the associates business and changes in the associates’ financial condition.

The disclosures relating to Group’s investment in associates are given in Note 5 of the consolidated financial
statement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders
of Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Other information included in the Group’s 2021 Annual Report

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information included
in the Group’s 2021 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. We obtained the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors, prior to the date of our auditor’s
report, and we expect to obtain the remaining sections of the Annual Report after the date of our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance
for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders
of Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

«  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders
of Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. (continued)

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Furthermore, in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the consolidated
financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors relating
to these consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report that, we obtained all
the information and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial
statements incorporate all information that is required by the Companies Law No 1 of 2016, as amended, and
its executive regulations, as amended, and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles
of Association, as amended, that an inventory was duly carried out and that, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, no violations of the Companies Law No 1 of 2016, as amended, and its executive regulations, as
amended, nor of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, as amended,
have occurred during the year ended 31 December 2021 that might have had a material effect on the business
of the Parent Company or on its financial position.

We further report that, during the course of our audit, we have not become aware of any violations of the
provisions of Law No 7 of 2010 concerning the Capital Markets Authority and its related regulations during the
year ended 31 December 2021 that might have had a material effect on the business of the Parent Company or
on its financial position.

ABDULKARIM AL-SAMDAN
LICENCE NO. 208 A

EY

AL AIBAN, AL OSAIMI & PARTNERS

7 February 2022
Kuwait
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Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary
Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2021

Notes 2021 2020
KD KD

Rental and services income 1,326,432 874,088
Property operating expenses (341,133) (272,803)
Net rental income 985,299 601,285
Change in fair value of investment properties 4 325,820 (1,089,400)
Share of result from associates 5 3,340,472 3,051,473
Unrealised gain (loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss 331,240 (76,307)
Realised gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss 1,702 -
Dividend income 74,348 62,500
Net investment income 4,073,582 1,948,266
Total operating income 5,058,881 2,549,551
Administrative expenses (1,040,646) (779,984)
Allowance for expected credit losses (101,765) (89,506)
Net operating income 3,916,470 1,730,061
Other income 43,464 170,992
Finance costs (430,460) (466,642)
Reversal of legal claim 23 822,191 -
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEFORE CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL
LABOUR SUPPORT TAX (NLST) AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
REMUNERATION 4,351,665 1,434,411
Contribution to KFAS (7,354) -
Zakat (5,893) -
NLST (96,118) (38,492)
Board of Directors’ remuneration 17 (75,000) (20,000)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 4,167,300 1,375,919
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 3 21.54 fils 7.11 fils

* The attached notes 1 to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2021 (continued)

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss) income:

Other comprehensive (loss) income that may be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:

Foreign currency translation adjustments of an associate

Other comprehensive (loss) income for the year

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

* The attached notes 1 to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2021 (continued)

Consolidated statement of Financial Position
as at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Notes KD KD
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property and equipment 276,712 336,658
Investment properties 4 83,175,515 72,244,626
Investment in associates 5 74,309,550 71,910,996
Receivable from sublease - 255,715
157,761,777 144,747,995
Current assets
Receivable from sublease 179,842 744,561
Account receivables and prepayments 582,914 1,280,729
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 7 1,841,961 1,510,721
Wakala investment deposits 8 560,000 580,000
Bank balances and cash 6 1,880,407 1,901,396
5,045,124 6,017,407
TOTAL ASSETS 162,806,901 150,765,402
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital 9 19,448,100 19,448,100
Share premium 5,199,430 5,199,430
Statutory reserve 10 1,872,577 1,437,410
Voluntary reserve 11 1,688,946 1,253,779
Treasury shares 13 (319,250) (819,250)
Effect of change in accounting policy of investment properties 46,118,487 46,118,487
Foreign currency translation reserve (85,366) (26,379)
Retained earnings 56,102,298 52,805,332
Total equity 130,025,222 125,916,909
Non-current liabilities
Employees’ end of service benefits 342,979 292,258
Account payables and accruals 14 599,433 740,060
Murabaha payables 15 27,800,000 20,400,000
28,742,412 21,432,318
Current liabilities
Account payables and accruals 14 3,523,027 3,217,749
Bank overdraft 6 516,240 198,426
4,039,267 3,416,175
Total liabilities 32,781,679 24,848,493
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 162,806,901 150,765,402
Sheikh. Ali Al Abdullah Al Khalifah Al Sabah Sheikh. Hamad Mubarak Jaber Al Ahmad Al Sabah
Chairman Vice Chairman

* The attached notes 1 to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2021 (continued)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Share Share Statutory Voluntary

capital premium reserve reserve

KD KD KD KD

As at 1 January 2021 19,448,100 5,199,430 1,437,410 1,253,779
Profit for the year - - - -
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Transfer to reserves - - 435,167 435,167
As at 31 December 2021 19,448,100 5,199,430 1,872,577 1,688,946
Share Share Statutory Voluntary

capital premium reserve reserve

KD KD KD KD

As at 1 January 2020 18,522,000 5,199,430 1,293,969 1,110,338
Profit for the year - - - -
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Transfer to reserves - - 143,441 143,441
Issue of bonus shares 926,100 - - -
As at 31 December 2020 19,448,100 5,199,430 1,437,410 1,253,779

* The attached notes 1 to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2020 (continued)

Effect of change

in accounting Foreign

policy of currency
Treasury investment translation Retained Total
shares properties reserve earnings equity
KD KD KD KD KD
(319,250) 46,118,487 (26,379) 52,805,332 125,916,909
- - - 4,167,300 4,167,300
- - (58,987) - (58,987)
- - (58,987) 4,167,300 4,108,313
- - - (870,334) -
(319,250) 46,118,487 (85,366) 56,102,298 130,025,222

Effect of change

in accounting Foreign

policy of currency
Capital Treasury investment translation Retained Total
surplus shares properties reserve earnings equity
KD KD KD KD KD KD
759,234 (819,250) 46,118,487 (64,905) 51,883,161 124,502,464
- - - - 1,375,919 1,375,919
- - - 38,526 - 38,526
- - - 38,526 1,375,919 1,414,445
- - - - (286,882) -
(759,234) - - - (166,866) -
- (819,250) 46,118,487 (26,379) 52,805,332 125,916,909

* The attached notes 1 to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

Consolidated Financial Statements 31 December 2021 (continued)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
Notes KD KD
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 4,167,300 1,375,919
Adjustments to reconcile profit for the year to net cash flows:
Change in fair value of investment properties 4 (325,820) 1,089,400
Share of result from associates 5 (3,340,472) (8,051,473)
Unrealised gain (loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (331,240) 76,307
Realised gain on sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (1,702) -
Dividend income (74,348) (62,500)
Interest income (33,854) (67,833)
Depreciation 94,628 89,696
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits 53,578 65,760
Allowance for expected credit losses 101,765 39,506
Finance costs 430,460 466,642
Reversal of legal claim (822,191) -
(81,896) 21,424
Working capital adjustments:
Account receivables and prepayments 596,050 487,621
Account payables and accruals 1,037,851 (84,994)
Cash flows from operating activities 1,552,005 424,051
Employees’ end of service benefits paid (2,857) -
Net cash flows from operating activities 1,549,148 424,051
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property and equipment (17,061) (1,070)
Additions to investment properties 4 (9,755,495) (6,760,385)
Return of capital (additions) to investment in associates 5 172,248 228,033
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,702 -
Dividend received from associates 5 710,683 1,776,707
Dividend income 74,348 62,500
Net movement in wakala investment deposits 20,000 (250,000)
Interest income received 33,854 67,833
Lease collection received - 711,859
Net cash flows used in investing activities (8,759,721) (4,164,523)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (7,577) 914)
Finance costs paid (430,460) (466,642)
Lease payments (90,193) (669,299)
Murabaha finance facilities available 7,400,000 6,200,000
Net cash flows from financing activities 6,871,770 5,063,145
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (338,803) 1,322,673
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,702,970 380,297
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 6 1,364,167 1,702,970
Non-cash transactions:
Utilization of advance payment to contractor 849,574 518,088
Additions to investment properties (849,574) (518,088)

* The attached notes 1 to 24 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consolidated financial statements of Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. (the “Parent
Company”) and its Subsidiary (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021 were authorised
for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on 7 February 2022. The General Assembly
of the Parent Company’s shareholders has the power to amend these consolidated financial statements after
their issuance.

The Parent Company is a Kuwaiti public shareholding company registered and incorporated in Kuwait on 26
October 1996.

The Parent Company activities are as follows:

All real estate activities including buying and selling lands, real estate and renting and leasing thereof inside
and outside Kuwait.

Establish and maintain buildings and real estate projects including establishment of residential complexes
thereof.

Establish commercial markets and entertainment centres, touristic facilities and building special
accommodations.

Perform all contracting works and trade in building materials requires for real estates and invest in companies
and projects shares with similar objects to the Parent Company’s.

Prepare studies for real estate projects, whether general of private and execute thereof directly or by proxy.
Manage properties inside or outside Kuwait and perform works which helps it to achieve its objectives.
Manage real estate portfolios for its accounts or for third parties and the Parent Company may have interest
or take part in any aspect with persons and companies, establishments and entities which manage or
practice works with similar objects or which may cooperate with it to achieve its objectives or be merged
therein or buy thereof, or be affiliated thereto.

The Parent Company’s shares are listed on Boursa Kuwait.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 were approved by the
shareholders of the Parent Company at the Annual General Assembly Meeting (AGM) held on 16 March 2021.
No dividends were declared by the parent company.

The registered head office of the Parent Company is located at Al Hamra Tower, 26th Floor, Office No. 2, P.O.
Box 22448, Safat 13085, Kuwait.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

Basis of presentation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis modified to include the
measurement at fair value of investment properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (KD), which is also the functional
and presentation currency of the Parent Company.

2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiary
as at 31 December 2021.

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group
controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

«  Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee);

«  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

+ The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

«  Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

+ The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;

* Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

«  The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.2 BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (“OCI”) are attributed to the equity holders
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated
in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-controlling
interests, and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Consideration received and any investment retained are recognized in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value. It also reclassifies any share of components previously recognised in
OCI to the consolidated statement of profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Details of the subsidiary included in the consolidated financial statements are set out below:

Effective interest in equity

Country of Principal activities
Name of the company incorporation 2021 2020
Al Hamra Cinema Company Kuwait 98% 98% Entertainment
K.S.C. (Closed) services

The Parent Company effectively owns 100% equity interest in the above entity. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on this basis. The ownership of 2% (2020: 2%) is registered in the name
of related parties as nominees. However, the Parent Company is the beneficial owner for 100% equity interest.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with
those used in the previous financial year, except for the adoption of following new and amended standards
effective as of 1 January 2021.

New and amended standards and interpretations
The Group applied, for the first time, certain standards and amendments, which are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16.
The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank
offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR). The amendments include
the following practical expedients:

+ To require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are directly required by the reform, to be
treated as changes to a floating interest rate, equivalent to a movement in a market rate of interest.

«  To permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being discontinued.

+ To provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an
RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Group intends to
use the practical expedients in future periods if they become applicable.

Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions

On 28 May 2020, the IASB issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions - amendment to IFRS 16 Leases. The
amendments provide relief to lessees from applying IFRS 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for
rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee
may elect not to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A
lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related
rent concession the same way it would account for the change under IFRS 16, if the change were not a lease
modification.

The amendment was intended to apply until 30 June 2021, but as the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic is
continuing, on 31 March 2021, the IASB extended the period of application of the practical expedient to 30 June
2022.

The amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

This amendment had no material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group’s financial
statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt these standards, if applicable, when they become
effective.

Amendments to IAS 1: Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the requirements for

classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments clarify:

+  What is meant by a right to defer settlement

« That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period

+ That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right

« That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the terms of
a liability not impact its classification

The amendments to the classification of liabilities are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2024 and must be applied retrospectively. Those amendments are not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s Consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

In May 2020, the IASB issued Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use, which prohibits
entities from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment, any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and
the costs of producing those items, in profit or loss.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and must be
applied retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented when the entity first applies the amendment.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Fees in the ‘10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial liabilities

As part of its 2018-2020 annual improvements to IFRS standards process the IASB issued amendment to IFRS
9. The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the original financial liability. These fees
include only those paid or received by the borrower and the lender, including fees paid or received by either
the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the entity first applies
the amendment.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 with earlier adoption
permitted. The Group will apply the amendments to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or after
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which the Group first applies the amendment.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Group.

Other new or amended standards which are issued but not yet effective, are not relevant to the Group and have
no impact on the accounting policies, financial position or performance of the Group.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue
arrangements.

The following specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

+ Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight line
basis over the lease term.

« Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

+ Indetermining the transaction price for the services, the Group considers the effects of variable consideration,
the existence of significant financing components, noncash consideration and consideration payable to the
customer (if any). The Group does not have any effect from these considerations since the Group is acting
asanagentinallitsrevenue arrangements.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and
all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected
useful life of the related asset.

When the Group receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal amounts
and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the asset, based on the pattern of consumption of
the benefits of the underlying asset by equal annual instalments.

Taxation

Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)

The Parent Company calculates the contribution to KFAS at 1% of profit for the year in accordance with the
modified calculation based on the Foundation’s Board of Directors resolution, which states that income from
associates and subsidiaries and transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for the year when
determining the contribution.

National Labour Support Tax (NLST)

The Parent Company calculates the NLST in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Minister of Finance
Resolutions No. 24 of 2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit for the year. As per law, income from associates and
subsidiaries, cash dividend from listed companies which are subjected to NLST have been deducted from the
profit for the year.

Zakat

Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit for the year in accordance with the requirements of the Ministry of Finance
resolution No. 58/2007 effective from 10 December 2007.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate
of the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets
and then its recoverable amount is assessed as part of the cash-generating unit to which it belongs. Where
the carrying amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount by recognizing impairment
loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or
cash-generating unit). In determining fair value less costs to sell an appropriate valuation model is used. These
calculations are corroborated by available fair value indicators.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount
is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the
case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount.

That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
had no impairmentloss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the
date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate
of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
taken to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the

exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combination and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured
as the aggregate of the consideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition date fair value, and the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and included in
administrative expenses.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include
an input and a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
acquired process is considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and the
inputs acquired include an organised workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform
that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is considered unique
or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to continue producing
outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by
the acquiree.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within
the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with the changes in fair value recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9 Other contingent consideration that is not
within the scope of IFRS 9 is measured at fair value at each reporting date with changes in fair value recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any previous interest held over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed). If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired
and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at
the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over
the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in the consolidated statement profit or loss.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (CGU) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets

a. Right of use assets

The Group recognises right of use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right of use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right of use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at
or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right of use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right of use
assets are subject to impairment.

b. Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the incremental profit rate at the lease
commencement date if the profit rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of profit and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.

Finance costs

Finance costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
the asset. All other finance costs are expensed in the period they occur. Finance costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowings
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties comprise properties under development and developed properties that are held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Properties held under a lease are classified as investment properties
when they are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for sale in the ordinary course
of business or for use in production or administrative functions.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Transaction costs include
professional fees for legal services, commissions and other costs to bring the property to the condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating. The carrying amount also includes the cost of replacing part of an existing
investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of
day to day servicing of an investment property.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Transfers are made to or from investment properties only when there is a change in use. For a transfer from
investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value
at the date of change in use. If owner occupied property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under property, plant and equipment up to the date of
change in use.

Investment properties are derecognised when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property
is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment property would result in either
gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of the investment property. Any gains or losses are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

48



Annual Report 2021

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment in associates
The Group’s investment in its associates is accounted for under the equity method of accounting. An associate
is an entity in which the Group has significant influence.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate is carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate. Goodwill
relating to an associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not amortised nor separately
tested for impairment.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate.
Where there has been a change recognised directly in the other comprehensive income of the associate, the
Group recognises its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in other comprehensive income.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to
the extent of the interest in the associate.

The Group’s share of profit of an associate is shown on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and represents profit after tax and non-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate. The financial
statements of the associate are prepared for no more than three-month difference in reporting period with the
Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an additional
impairment loss on the Group’s investment in its associates. The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Upon loss of
significant influence over the associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

49



Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments - initial recognition, subsequent measurement and derecognition

i) Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, and fair value
through profit or loss. The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
account receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Account receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under IFRS 15.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment
is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. The Group’s business model for managing
financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or
both. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Group’s financial assets includes account receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
wakala investmnet deposits, bank balances and cash.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

« The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

« The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding Financial assets at amortised cost
are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required
to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces,
an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position
at fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

derecognised when:

« therights to receive the cash flows from the asset have expired; or

+ the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower

of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.

51



Ajial Real Estate Entertainment Company K.S.C.P. and its Subsidiary

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL).

For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For account receivables, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in case of loans and borrowings, plus directly
attributable transactions costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank overdraft, murabaha payables, account payables and accruals.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Murabaha payables
Murabaha payables is an Islamic agreement which represents the amount payable, on a deferred settlement
basis, exceeding one year for assets purchased under Murabaha arrangements.

Account payables and accruals

Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by
the supplier or not.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements

are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

+  Level1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

«  Level2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

«  Level3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above. An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are
measured are provided in Note 23.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Treasury shares

The Parent Company’s own shares are accounted for as treasury shares and are stated at cost. When the
treasury shares are sold, gains are credited to a separate account in equity (treasury shares reserve) which is
non-distributable. Any realised losses are charged to the same account to the extent of the credit balance on that
account. Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings then reserves. Gains realised subsequently on the
sale of treasury shares are first used to offset any previously recorded losses in the order of reserves, retained
earnings and the treasury shares reserve account. No cash dividends are distributed on these shares. The issue
of bonus shares increases the number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces the average cost per share
without affecting the total cost of treasury shares.

Employees’ end of service benefits

The Group provides end of service benefits to all its employees under the Kuwait Labour Law. The entitlement
to these benefits is based upon the employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to completion of a
minimum service period. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.

Further, with respect to its national employees, the Group also makes contributions to Public Institution for Social
Security calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s obligations are limited to these
contributions, which are expensed when due.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation amount can be made.

Segment information

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

Contingencies
Contingent assets are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the consolidated financial statements but are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

Classification of financial assets

The Group determines the classification of financial assets based on the assessment of the business model
within which the assets are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms of the financial asset are solely
payments of principal and profit on the principal amount outstanding.

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessee

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option
to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has the option, under some of its leases to lease the assets for additional terms. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the option to renew. That is, it considers
all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within
its control and affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in business
strategy).

Operating lease commitments - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not
constituting a substantial portion of the economic life of the commercial property, that it retains all the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Classification of investment properties

The Group classifies property as investment properties if it is acquired to generate rental income, for capital
appreciation, or for undetermined future use.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below.

The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Valuation of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties under development and developed investment properties is determined
based on valuation performed annually by independent professional real estate valuation experts who have the
required qualifications and experience in valuing such types of properties using recognised valuation techniques
recommended by the International Valuation Standards Committee, except if such value cannot be reliably
determined in the case of investment properties under development.

The fair value of investment properties under development is determined using a combination of the sales
comparison approach for the land and cost approach for the construction work. The fair value of developed
investment properties which generate rental income is determined using the income capitalization approach;
whereas, the fair value of developed investment properties which do not generate rental income is determined
using the sales comparison approach based on recent transactions for properties with characteristics and
location similar to those of the Group’s properties.

Impairment of investment in associates

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment
loss on its investment in its associates. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective
evidence that the investment in the associates is impaired. If such evidence exists, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the investment and its carrying
value, then recognises the loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2.6 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES
AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
3 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year (excluding treasury shares). Diluted earnings per share is calculated
by dividing the profit for the year by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
(excluding treasury shares) plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the
conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. As at the reporting date, the Group
had no outstanding dilutive potential shares. As there are no dilutive instruments outstanding, basic and diluted
earnings per share are identical.

2021 2020
Profit for the year (KD) 4,167,300 1,375,919
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
(excluding treasury shares) 193,423,511 193,423,511
Basic and diluted earnings per share 21.54 fils 7.11 fils
4 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2021 2020
KD KD
At 1 January 72,244,626 66,055,553
Additions 10,605,069 7,278,473
Change in fair value of investment properties 325,820 (1,089,400)
At 31 December 83,175,515 72,244,626
Investment properties are categorised as follows:
2021 2020
KD KD
Property under development 57,675,515 46,224,626
Developed properties 25,500,000 26,020,000
83,175,515 72,244,626
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4 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

As at 31 December 2021, an investment property with fair value of KD 79,375,515 (2020: KD 67,924,626) is
pledged as a security against Murabaha payables of KD 27,800,000 (31 December 2020: pledged as a security
against Murabaha payables of KD 20,400,000) (Note 15) and bank overdraft of KD 516,240 (31 December 2020:
KD 198,426) (Note 6).

The fair value of investment properties has been determined based on valuations performed by two independent
professional real estate valuers, who are industry specialised in valuing such type of investment properties. One
of these valuers is a local bank and the other is a local reputable accredited valuer. Both valuers have used the
following methods:

+  Properties under development has been valued using a combination of the sales comparison approach for
the land and cost approach for the construction work.

+  Developed properties which generates rental income has been valued using the income capitalisation
approach.

For valuation purpose, the Group has selected the lower of these two valuations (2020: the lower of two valuations)
carried out within the time range which is one month before or after the reporting date as required by the Capital
Market Authority (CMA). Based on these valuations, the Group has recognized gain from change in fair value of
KD 325,820 (2020: loss of KD 1,089,400) in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

All investment properties are categorised in level 2 and level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

The significant assumptions made relating to valuation of the developed property, that has been valued
using the income capitalization approach, are set out below:

2021 2020
Average rent (per sqm) (KD) 9.5 9.8
Yield rate 6.3% 6.7%
Vacancy rate 4.6% 0.5%

Sensitivity analysis
The table below presents the sensitivity of the valuation to changes in the most significant assumptions underlying
the valuation of the investment properties.

Impact on profit for the year

Changes in

valuation 2021 2020

assumptions KD KD
Average rent +1% 218,820 217,175
Yield rate + 50 BP 171,105 161,264
Vacancy rate +1% 39,264 32,570
Percentage of operating expenses to annual rental income +1% 244,386 248,230
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The Group has the following investment in associates:

Country of
Name of company incorporation Effective interest in equity
2021 2020  Year- end
Al Hamra Real Estate Company Kuwait 35.53% 35.583% 31 October
K.S.C. (Closed)
Al Madar Al Thahabia Company Saudi Arabia 24% 24% 31 December

W.L.L. (“Al Madar”)

Principal activities
Real estate
activities

Real estate
activities

Movement in the carrying amount of investment in associates during the year is as follows:

2021

KD

As at 1 January 71,910,996
Share of results 3,340,472
Return of capital (172,248)
Dividend received (710,683)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (58,987)
As at 31 December 74,309,550

2020
KD

70,825,737
3,051,473
(228,033)
(1,776,707)
38,526

71,910,996

The following tables illustrates the summarized financial information of the Group’s investment

in associates:

Al Madar Al Al Hamra Real

Thahabia Estate Company
Associates statement of financial Company W.L.L. K.S.C. (Closed) 2021
position: KD KD KD
Non-current assets 34,300,040 270,374,568 304,674,608
Current assets 762,107 8,137,325 8,899,432
Non-current liabilities (66,457) (86,136,106) (86,202,563)
Current liabilities (1,202,468) (6,056,684) (7,259,152)
Equity 33,793,222 186,319,103 220,112,325

Proportion of the Group’s ownership 24% 35.53%
Carrying value of the investment 8,110,373 66,199,177 74,309,550
Revenues 2,157,995 17,824,833 19,982,828
Results 663,999 8,953,313 9,617,312
Other comprehensive (loss) income (245,779) - (245,779)
Total comprehensive income 418,220 8,953,313 9,371,533

2020
KD

301,722,138

11,773,095
(89,214,738)
(10,821,770)

213,458,725

71,910,996
18,762,175
8,694,372
160,525

8,854,897
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6 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are comprised
of the following:

2021 2020

KD KD

Bank balances and cash 1,880,407 1,901,396
Bank overdraft (516,240) (198,426)
Total cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 1,364,167 1,702,970

Bank overdraft represent facilities granted by local bank in Kuwaiti Dinars and carries an effective profit rates
of 1.5% (31 December 2020: 1.5%) per annum over the Central Bank of Kuwait discount rate which is secured
against certain investment properties (Note 4).

7 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2021 2020

KD KD

Local unquoted equity securities 1,786,513 1,458,552
Managed funds 55,448 52,169
1,841,961 1,510,721

8 WAKALA INVESTMENT DEPOSITS

Wakala investment deposits are denominated in Kuwaiti Dinars, placed with a local bank, carry a fixed profit rate
of 1.35% (31 December 2020: 1.319%) per annum and pledged against letter of credit issued in favour of one of
the Group’s contractor.
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9 SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Parent Company consists of:

Authorised, issued and fully paid up share capital

2021 2020 2021 2020
KD KD Shares Shares
194,481,000 shares of 100 fils each 19,448,100 19,448,100 194,481,000 194,481,000

(31 December 2020: 194,481,000
shares of 100 fils each) and fully
paid in cash

10 STATUTORY RESERVE

In accordance with the Companies’ Law, and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles
of Association, a minimum of 10% of the profit for the year before contributions to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and
board of directors’ remuneration shall be transferred to the statutory reserve based on the recommendation of
the Parent Company’s board of directors. The annual general assembly of the Parent Company may resolve to
discontinue such transfer when the reserve exceeds 50% of the issued share capital.

Distribution of the statutory reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the payment of a dividend of
5% of paid up share capital to be made in years when retained earnings are not sufficient for the payment of a
dividend of that amount.

11 VOLUNTARY RESERVE

In accordance with the Companies’ Law, and the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles
of Association, a maximum of 10% of the profit for the year before contributions to KFAS, NLST, Zakat and board
of directors’ remuneration is required to be transferred to the voluntary reserve. Such annual transfers may be
discontinued by a resolution of the shareholders’ general assembly upon a recommendation by the Board of
Directors. There are no restrictions on the distribution of this reserve.
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12 CASH DIVIDENDS

On 7 February 2022, the Board of Director of parent company proposed a cash dividend of 5 fils per share
(2020: Nil) for the year ended 31 December 2021. This proposal is subject to the approval of the Annual General
Assembly of the Parent Company’s shareholders.

The Annual General Assembly of the shareholders of the Parent Company held on 16 March 2021 approved the
Board of Directors’ recommendation not to distribute dividends for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

13 TREASURY SHARES

2021 2020
Number of shares 1,057,489 1,057,489
Percentage of issued shares 0.54% 0.54%
Market value (KD) 321,477 187,176
Cost (KD) 319,250 319,250

The weighted average market price of the Parent Company’s shares for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
304 fils per share (31 December 2020: 177 fils per share).

Reserves equivalent to the cost of treasury shares are not available for distribution throughout the year these
shares are held by the Group as per CMA guidelines.
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14 ACCOUNT PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

2021 2020

KD KD

Amounts due to contractors and suppliers 1,914,692 926,090
Rent received in advance from tenants 286,095 96,721
Deposits from tenants 420,425 253,981
Accrued expenses 427,659 64,700
Dividend payable 121,363 128,940
Amounts due to related parties (Note 17) 155,617 31,139
Lease liabilities 445,829 1,251,505
Other payables 350,780 1,204,733
4,122,460 3,957,809

Account payables and accruals are disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial position
as follows:

2021 2020

KD KD

Non-current 599,433 740,060
Current 3,523,027 3,217,749
4,122,460 3,957,809

15 MURABAHA PAYABLES

Murabaha payables is obtained from a local bank, denominated in Kuwaiti Dinar and carry an average profit rate
of 1.5% per annum (2020: 1.5% per annum) over the Central Bank of Kuwait discount rate and secured against
investment properties with a carrying value of KD 79,375,515 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: KD 67,924,626)
(Note 4).

The amount of borrowing costs capitalised during the year ended 31 December 2021 was 416,630 (2020:
213,977).

16 CHANGES IN LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash
1 January flows - 31 December
2021 in/(out) 2021
KD KD KD
Dividend payable 128,940 (7,577) 121,363
Murabaha payables 20,400,000 7,400,000 27,800,000
Lease liabilities 1,251,505 (805,676) 445,829
21,780,445 6,586,747 28,367,192

Cash
1 January flows - 31 December
2020 in/(out) 2020
KD KD KD
Dividend payable 129,854 (914) 128,940
Murabaha payables 14,200,000 6,200,000 20,400,000
Lease liabilities 1,920,804 (669,299) 1,251,505
16,250,658 5,529,787 21,780,445
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17 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

These represent transactions and balances with major shareholders, directors, executive officers and key
management personnel of the Group, close members of their families and companies of which they are principal
owners or over which they are able to exercise control or significant influence entered into by the Group in
the ordinary course of business. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Parent
Company’s management.

Transactions with related parties included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss are as follows:

Associate 2021 2020
KD KD KD
Rent and other expense (included in property operating expenses 4,444 4,444 5,044

and administrative expenses)

Balances with related parties included in the consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

Associate 2021 2020

KD KD KD

Amounts due to a related party (Note 14) 155,617 155,617 31,139
Lease liabilities 445,829 445,829 1,251,505

Amounts due to a related party do not carry any interest and are payable within one year from the reporting date.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel of the Group during the year were as follows:

2021 2020

KD KD

Salaries and short-term benefits 223,466 159,075
Employees’ end of service benefits 25,013 31,767
Board of Directors’ remuneration® 75,000 20,000
323,479 210,842

* On 7 February 2022, the Board of Directors of the Parent Company proposed directors’ remuneration of KD
75,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: KD 20,000). This proposal was subject to the approval of
the shareholders at the AGM of the Parent Company.

The Annual General Assembly of the Parent Company’s shareholders held on 16 March 2021 approved the

board of directors’ recommendation to distribute a directors’ remuneration of KD 20,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020.

18 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has contingent liabilities representing a letter of guarantee amounting to
KD 21,399 (2020: KD 21,399) issued to the Ministry of Finance in respect of its investment properties, from which
it is anticipated that no material liability will arise.
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19 SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on their products and services, and

has two reportable operating segments as follows:

+ Real estate investing activities comprises investment and trading in real estate and construction or
development of real estate for the sale in the ordinary course of business and other related real estate
services.

+ Equities and other investing activities comprise participation in financial and real estate funds and managing
the Group’s liquidity requirements.

Segment reporting information is as follows:

Equities and
other investing Real estate
activities activities Unallocated Total
31 December 2021 KD KD KD KD
Segment revenue 3,416,522 1,326,432 865,655 5,608,609
Change in fair value of investment
properties - 325,820 - 325,820
Unrealised loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 331,240 - - 331,240
Finance costs (302,843) - (127,617) (430,460)
Other expenses, net - (341,133) (1,326,776) (1,667,909)
Segment results 3,444,919 1,311,119 (588,738) 4,167,300
Segment assets 76,151,511 83,175,515 3,479,875 162,806,901
Segment liabilities 10,000,000 19,079,644 3,702,035 32,781,679
Equities and
31 December 2020 other investing Real estate
activities activities Unallocated Total
KD KD KD KD
Segment revenue 3,113,973 874,088 170,992 4,159,053
Change in fair value of investment
properties - (1,089,400) - (1,089,400)
Unrealised loss on financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (76,307) - - (76,307)
Finance costs (339,820) - (126,822) (466,642)
Other expenses, net - (272,803) (877,982) (1,150,785)
Segment results 2,697,846 (488,115) (833,812) 1,375,919
Segment assets 73,421,717 72,244,626 5,099,059 150,765,402
Segment liabilities 10,000,000 11,144,665 3,703,828 24,848,493
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main risks arising from Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, and market risk. Risk is
inherent in the Group’s activities but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and
monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Group’s
continuing profitability and each individual within the Group is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his
or her responsibilities.

Market risk is subdivided into profit rate risk, foreign currency risk and equity price risk. It is also subject to
operating risks. The independent risk control process does not include business risks such as changes in the
environment technology and industry. They are monitored through the Group’s strategic planning process. The
Board of Directors are ultimately responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the
risk strategies and principles.

20.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss. Management of the Group attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit
exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties, and continually assessing the creditworthiness of
counterparties. The maximum credit risk is limited to the carrying values of financial assets appearing on the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to tenants of its investment properties by monitoring
outstanding receivables. The Group limits credit risk with regard to its bank balances and wakala investment
deposits by only dealing with reputable banks.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other financial assets, the Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

20.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its net funding requirements. Liquidity risk can
be caused by market disruptions or credit downgrades which may cause certain sources of funding to dry up
immediately. To guard against this risk, management has diversified funding sources and assets are managed
with liquidity considered, maintaining a healthy balance of cash and cash equivalents, and readily marketable
securities.
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
20.2 Liquidity risk (continued)

The liquidity profile of financial liabilities reflects the projected cash flows which includes future profit rate
payments over the life of these financial liabilities. The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s
undiscounted financial liabilities as at 31 December based on contractual undiscounted repayment obligations:

Less than 3to 12 1to5 More than 5
3 months months years years Total
KD KD KD KD KD
2021
Murabaha payables 208,500 625,500 10,976,563 22,152,000 33,962,563
Account payables and accruals* 2,113,099 1,133,414 606,516 - 3,853,029
Bank overdraft - 516,240 - - 516,240
Total 2,321,599 2,275,154 11,583,079 22,152,000 38,331,832
Less than 3to12 1to5 More than 5
3 months months years years Total
KD KD KD KD KD
2020
Murabaha payables 153,000 459,000 11,800,000 11,111,405 23,523,405
Account payables and accruals* 1,129,033 2,029,270 757,271 - 3,915,574
Bank overdraft - 198,426 - - 198,426
Total 1,282,033 2,686,696 12,557,271 11,111,405 27,637,405

* Excluding rent received in advance
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20 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
20.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of an asset will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, whether
those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual investment or its issuer or factors affecting all
investments traded in the market. Market risk is managed based on pre-determined asset allocations across
various asset categories, diversification of assets in terms of geographical distribution and industry concentration,
a continuous appraisal of market conditions and trends and management’s estimate of long and short term
changes in fair value.

20.3.1 Profit rate risk

Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to profit rate risk on its floating profit bearing murabaha
payables (Note 15) and bank overdraft (Note 6).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the consolidated statement of profit or loss to reasonably
possible changes in profit rates, with all other variables held constant:

Increase/ decrease Effect on profit

in basis for the year

points KD

2021 (+/-) 100 178,651
2020 (+/-) 100 205,984

20.3.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is not significantly exposed to foreign currency risk as the majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities
are denominated in Kuwaiti Dinars.

20.3.3 Equity price risk

Equity price risk arises from the change in fair values of equity investments. The Group manages this risk through
diversification of investments in terms of industry concentration.

The Group is not exposed to equity price risk as the Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
consists investments in unquoted equity securities and managed funds.

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in business conditions.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020. Capital comprises total equity excluding foreign currency translation reserve and is
measured at KD 130,110,588 as at 31 December 2021 (2020: KD 125,943,288).
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21

The

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Group has entered into construction contracts with third parties and is consequently committed to future

capital expenditure in respect of properties under construction amounting to KD 3,687,276 (2020: KD 10,481,762).

22

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Financial instruments
Financial instruments comprise financial assets and financial liabilities.

The

fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value are not materially

different from their carrying amounts.

The

methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values of assets is described in fair value section of

Note 2.5: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Fair value hierarchy

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

The

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable.

following table shows an analysis of the Group’s assets recorded at fair value by level of the fair value

hierarchy at 31 December:

Level 3
2021 KD
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,841,961
Level 3
2020 KD
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,510,721
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The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing amount of level 3 financial assets
which are recorded at fair value at 31 December.

Net gains
(losses)
recorded in the Net purchases,
At the consolidated transfers, sales
beginning of statement of and At the end of
the year profit or loss settlements the year
2021 KD KD KD KD
Financial assets at fair value through 1,510,721 331,240 - 1,841,961
profit or loss
2020
Financial assets at fair value through profit 1,587,028 (76,307) - 1,510,721
or loss

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation of financial assets:

Managed funds:

Managed funds have been valued based on Net Asset Value (NAV) provided by the custodian of the fund. The
information relating to valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs to valuation to compute the
sensitivity of the fair value measurement to changes in unobservable inputs is not available.

Unquoted equity securities:

Significant
Unquoted equity Valuation unobservable Sensitivity of the input
securities techniques inputs Range to fair value
Market multiples DLOM * 10 - 50% 5% increase (decrease) in the discount
approach would decrease (increase) the fair value by

KD 92,098.

* Discount for lack of marketability represents the amounts that the Group has determined that market participants
would take into account when pricing the investments.
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22 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

Non-financial assets

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

KD KD KD KD

2021 - 57,675,515 25,500,000 83,175,515
Investment properties

2020 - 46,224,626 26,020,000 72,244,626

Investment properties

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing amount of level 3 non-financial
assets which are recorded at fair value at 31 December.

At the Net purchases,
beginning transfers, sales At the
of the year Net losses and settlements end of the year
KD KD KD KD
As at 31 December 2021 26,020,000 (523,180) 3,180 25,500,000
Investment properties
As at 31 December 2020 26,569,000 (602,400) 53,400 26,020,000

Investment properties

Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation of investment properties:

Investment properties

Property under development

Property under development is valued using a combination of the sales comparison approach for the land and
cost approach for the construction work. Sales comparison approach is based on a comparison of active market
prices for similar properties and recent arm’s length market transactions, adjusted for difference in the nature,
location or condition of the specific property.

Estimated cost approach is based on a comparison of the cost of constructing a similar property taking into
consideration depreciation of the construction costs, adjusted for difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific property.

Developed properties

Developed properties are valued using the income capitalization approach, which is based on capitalization of
the discounted annual cash flows from the property, which is calculated by discounting rental income generated
annually by the property using the current market discount rate. Details of inputs to the valuation and sensitivity
analysis are provided in Note 4.
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23 REVERSAL OF LEGAL CLAIM

During the previous years, the Parent Company recorded a provision for legal claim relating to National Labour
Support Tax (NLST) claimed by the Ministry of Finance for the fiscal year 2012. In 2015, the Group raised a
legal case against the Ministry of Finance requesting a cancellation of this claim and since that time, the case
was under the assessment of the court of litigation. The final verdict was issued by the Court of Cassation

on 10 March 2021 in favor of the Group stipulating the cancellation of this claim, Accordingly, based on the
final verdict issued, the Group has reversed the excess provision recorded previously of KD 822,191 in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended.

24 IMPACT OF COVID- 19

The COVID-19 pandemic continues to spread across global geographies causing disruption to business and
economic activities and bringing significant uncertainties to the global economic environment. Fiscal and
monetary authorities worldwide launched extensive responses designed to mitigate the severe consequences
of the pandemic.

The Group considered the potential impact of the current economic volatility on the reported amounts of the
Group’s financial and non-financial assets. The reported amounts best represent management’s assessment
based on observable information. Markets, however, remain volatile and asset carrying values remain sensitive
to market fluctuations. The impact of the highly uncertain economic environment remains judgmental and the
Group will accordingly continue to reassess its position and the related impact on a regular basis.
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